

65 Civic Avenue Pittsburg, CA 94565 P: (925) 252-4930 F: (925) 252-6928

pittsburgca.gov

Public Works Department - Engineering Division

September 30, 2022

Eileen White, Executive Officer California Regional Water Quality Control Board San Francisco Bay Region 1515 Clay Street, Suite 1400 Oakland, CA 94612

Dear Ms. White:

Enclosed is the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Annual Report for the City of Pittsburg, which is required by and in accordance with Provision C.17 in National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit Number CAS612008 issued by the San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board.

I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gathered and evaluated the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fines and imprisonment for knowing violations.

Sincerety

Richard Abono

Public Works Director / City Engineer

FY 2021-2022 Annual Report Permittee Name: City of Pittsburg

Table of Contents

Section	Page
Section 1 – Permittee Information	1-1
Section 2 – Provision C.2 Municipal Operations	2-1
Section 3 – Provision C.3 New Development and Redevelopment	3-1
Section 4 – Provision C.4 Industrial and Commercial Site Controls	4-1
Section 5 – Provision C.5 Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination	5-1
Section 6 – Provision C.6 Construction Site Controls	6-1
Section 7 – Provision C.7 Public Information and Outreach	7-1
Section 9 – Provision C.9 Pesticides Toxicity Controls	9-1
Section 10 – Provision C.10 Trash Load Reduction	10-1
Section 11 - Provision C.11 Mercury Controls	
Section 12 – Provision C.12 PCBs Controls	12-1
Section 13 – Provision C.13 Copper Controls	13-1
Section 15 – Provision C.15 Exempted and Conditionally Exempted Discharges	15-1

Section 1 – Permittee Information

Background Informa	ation								
Permittee Name:	City of Pittsbu	Jrg							
Population:	76,000								
NPDES Permit No.:	CAS612008								
Order Number:	R2-2015-0049	1							
Reporting Time Period (n	nonth/year):	July 202	1 through Jun	ne 2022					
Name of the Responsible	Authority:	Jolan Lo	ngway					Title:	Clean Water Program Coordinator
Mailing Address:		65 Civic	Avenue						
City: Pittsburg			Zip Code:	94565			Co	unty:	Contra Costa
Telephone Number:		(925) 252	2-4803		Fax Numbe	r:			
E-mail Address:		jlongwa	y@pittsburgc	a.gov					
Name of the Designated Management Program O different from above):						Title:			
Department:									
Mailing Address:									
City:			Zip Code:				Co	unty:	
Telephone Number:					Fax Number	r:			
E-mail Address:									

Section 2 - Provision C.2 Reporting Municipal Operations

Program Highlights and Evaluation

Highlight/summarize activities for reporting year:

Summary:

The City participated in the CCCWP Municipal Operations Committee in FY 21/22. Public Works staff continues to conduct regular tailgate meetings with their staff for proper BMP practices for maintenance of the Corp Yard, and BMP practices appropriate for their work (i.e. street maintenance, water or sewer line repairs, etc.)

The corporation yards continue to be inspected weekly in conjunction with site safety inspections.

C.2.a. ▶ Street and Road Repair and Maintenance

Place a **Y** in the boxes next to activities where applicable BMPs were implemented. If not applicable, type **NA** in the box and provide an explanation in the comments section below. Place an **N** in the boxes next to activities where applicable BMPs were not implemented for one or more of these activities during the reporting fiscal year, then in the comments section below provide an explanation of when BMPs were not implemented and the corrective actions taken.

- Control of debris and waste materials during road and parking lot installation, re-paving or repair maintenance activities from polluting stormwater
- Y Control of concrete slurry and wastewater, asphalt, pavement cutting, and other street and road maintenance materials and wastewater from discharging to storm drains from work sites.
- Sweeping and/or vacuuming and other dry methods to remove debris, concrete, or sediment residues from work sites upon completion of work.

Comments:

C.2.b. ► Sidewalk/Plaza Maintenance and Pavement Washing

Place a **Y** in the boxes next to activities where applicable BMPs were implemented. If not applicable, type **NA** in the box and provide an explanation in the comments section below. Place an **N** in the boxes next to activities where applicable BMPs were not implemented for one or more of these activities during the reporting fiscal year, then in the comments section below provide an explanation of when BMPs were not implemented and the corrective actions taken.

- Control of wash water from pavement washing, mobile cleaning, pressure wash operations at parking lots, garages, trash areas, gas station fueling areas, and sidewalk and plaza cleaning activities from polluting stormwater
- Y Implementation of the BASMAA Mobile Surface Cleaner Program BMPs

Comments:

Public Works staff conduct pavement washing of the downtown plaza and sidewalks using a Factory Cat sweeper. These areas are maintained by our staff on a regular basis due to the high volume of public and private events such as farmers' markets, car shows, and other events. To ensure that best management practices are followed, the City provides the extra needed trash and recycling containers, dispose of the debris, and clean the plaza and sidewalk surfaces (largely permeable pavers).

C.2.c. ▶ Bridge and Structure Maintenance and Graffiti Removal

Place a **Y** in the boxes next to activities where applicable BMPs were implemented. If not applicable, type **NA** in the box and provide an explanation in the comments section below. Place an **N** in the boxes next to activities where applicable BMPs were not implemented for one or more of these activities during the reporting fiscal year, then in the comments section below provide an explanation of when BMPs were not implemented and the corrective actions taken.

- NA Control of discharges from bridge and structural maintenance activities directly over water or into storm drains
- Y Control of discharges from graffiti removal activities
- Y Proper disposal for wastes generated from bridge and structure maintenance and graffiti removal activities
- Y Implementation of the BASMAA Mobile Surface Cleaner Program BMPs for graffiti removal
- Employee training on proper capture and disposal methods for wastes generated from bridge and structural maintenance and graffiti removal activities.
- NA Contract specifications requiring proper capture and disposal methods for wastes generated from bridge and structural maintenance and graffiti removal activities.

Comments: City staff is trained on proper BMP implementation when removing graffiti. City does not do bridge structural maintenance.

C.2	e. ▶Rural Public Works Construction and Maintenance					
Doe	s your municipality own/maintain rural ¹ roads:		Yes	Х		No
If yo	ur answer is No then skip to C.2.f .		_			
expl more	e a $\bf Y$ in the boxes next to activities where applicable BMPs were implement anation in the comments section below. Place an $\bf N$ in the boxes next to a set of these activities during the reporting fiscal year, then in the comments semented and the corrective actions taken.	ctivitie	es where app	olicabl	le	BMPs were not implemented for one or
	Control of road-related erosion and sediment transport from road design	, con	struction, mo	aintend	an	ce, and repairs in rural areas
	Identification and prioritization of rural road maintenance based on soil e	erosio	n potential, s	slope s	ste	epness, and stream habitat resources
	No impact to creek functions including migratory fish passage during co	nstruc	tion of roads	s and c	CU	lverts
	Inspection of rural roads for structural integrity and prevention of impact	on wo	ater quality			
	Maintenance of rural roads adjacent to streams and riparian habitat to rerosion	educ	e erosion, re	place	do	amaging shotgun culverts and excessive
	Re-grading of unpaved rural roads to slope outward where consistent wi as appropriate	th roc	ıd engineeriı	ng safe	ety	standards, and installation of water bars
	Inclusion of measures to reduce erosion, provide fish passage, and main design of new culverts or bridge crossings	ain n	atural strean	n geon	nc	orphology when replacing culverts or
Com	nments including listing increased maintenance in priority areas:					

FY 21-22 AR Form 2-3 9/30/22

¹Rural means any watershed or portion thereof that is developed with large lot home-sites, such as one acre or larger, or with primarily agricultural, grazing or open space uses.

C.2	2.f. ▶Corporation Yard BMP Implementation
Plac	ce an X in the boxes below that apply to your corporation yard(s):
	We do not have a corporation yard
	Our corporation yard is a filed NOI facility and regulated by the California State Industrial Stormwater NPDES General Permit
Χ	We have a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for the Corporation Yard(s)
app	ce an X in the boxes below next to implemented SWPPP BMPs to indicate that these BMPs were implemented in applicable instances. If not blicable, type NA in the box. If one or more of the BMPs were not adequately implemented during the reporting fiscal year then indicate so I explain in the comments section below:
Χ	Control of pollutant discharges to storm drains such as wash waters from cleaning vehicles and equipment
Χ	Routine inspection prior to the rainy seasons of corporation yard(s) to ensure non-stormwater discharges have not entered the storm drain system
Χ	Containment of all vehicle and equipment wash areas through plumbing to sanitary or another collection method
Х	Use of dry cleanup methods when cleaning debris and spills from corporation yard(s) or collection of all wash water and disposing of wash water to sanitary or other location where it does not impact surface or groundwater when wet cleanup methods are used
Χ	Cover and/or berm outdoor storage areas containing waste pollutants

FY 2021 - 2022 Annual Report Permittee Name: City of Pittsburg

Comments:

The City has 4 maintenance yards, in 2013, 2020, and 2021 the Stormwater Pollutions Prevention Plan for all these facilities were updated to reflect the activities that occur at each of these yards.

The yards are inspected weekly in conjunction with the site safety inspection check. Issues and or corrective actions are addressed immediately within the same week. Corp Yard BMPs Include:

- Non-stormwater Discharges & Spills: Vacuum and dispose non-stormwater discharge properly. Routinely sweep and dispose of litter in trash. Use absorbent materials to clean up oily spots, Keep work sites clean and orderly.
- Fleet maintenance & repair: Inspect and report leaking vehicles. Avoid hosing down areas to prevent wash water from entering the storm drain system. Use dry cleanup methods and absorbent material for cleanup. Dispose of vehicle fluids according to laws and regulations. Collect leaking or dripping fluids in drip pans or containers. Place temporary roofs or cover over vehicles or equipment parked on lot awaiting repair or salvage. Discharge wash water to sanitary sewer. Have a designated indoor repair/maintenance shop prevents stormwater exposure and contamination. A trash receptacle near the wash rack allows easy access and reduces littering.
- Fuel dispensing: "Spot Clean" leaks routinely with absorbent material and dispose of properly. Fuel dispensing area is paved with concrete on a 2-4% slope to prevent ponding.
- Outdoor container storage: Protect materials from rainfall, run-on, and run-off dispersal. Minimize stormwater run-on by enclosing a building or building a berm around it. Place tight fitting lids on all containers. Storage of oil and hazardous material standards using spill prevention, secondary containment, leak detection, & emergency preparedness.
- Outdoor storage of Raw Materials: Store all materials inside or covered with a roof and bermed, or enclosed. Do not store materials on ground and place in secondary containment if applicable. Provide protection guards (bollards) around tanks.
- Outdoor Loading / Unloading : Use designated loading/unloading area to prevent surface pollution.
- Waste handling and Disposal: Cover storage containers or piles except when in use. Check storage containers for leaks, corrosion, or deterioration. Dispose of used or leftover automotive fluids, cleaning solutions, and solvents according to laws and regulations. Place waste containers under cover if possible.
- **Building & Grounds Maintenance**: Application of pesticides is done in accordance with the City's current IPM Policy. Dispose of grass clippings, leaves, or other vegetation as garbage or by composting. Check storage containers for leaks, corrosion, or deterioration. Cover and lock storage containers when not in use.
- Municipal vehicle/heavy equipment parking; employee parking, etc.: Sweep regularly to prevent or reduce discharge pollutants from parking/storage areas.
- Equipment Repair: Use designated indoor equipment maintenance area that is designed to prevent stormwater pollution.

If you have a corporation yard(s) that is not an NOI facility, complete the following table for inspection results for your corporation yard(s) or attach a summary including the following information:

				Date and Description of
	Corp Yard Activities w/ site-	Inspection		Follow-up and/or
Corporation Yard Name	specific SWPPP BMPs	Date ²	Inspection Findings/Results	Corrective Actions

Main Corporation Yard	The City implemented the BMPs listed previously for the following activities. Parking/Storage Area Maintenance Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance & Repair Outdoor Container Storage Waste Handling & Disposal Outdoor Loading/Unloading of Materials Outdoor Storage of Raw Materials Vehicle and Equipment Washing Building and Grounds Maintenance and Repair	10/4/21	 Fuel tank has been removed – remove from activities 1 Trash bin needs to be replaced Additional sweeper pass needed 	Same day
Water Treatment Plant	The City implemented the BMPs listed previously for the following activities. Parking/Storage Area Maintenance Outdoor Container Storage of Liquids Equipment Maintenance & Repair Water Treatment Equipment Fueling Chemical & Hazmat Storage Water Storage Sediment Storage	9/17/21		

 $^{^{\}rm 2}$ Minimum inspection frequency is once a year during September.

	Waste Handling & Disposal Building Grounds Maintenance & Repair In addition, the Water Treatment Plant implements BMPs for: Outdoor storage of plant chemical tanks such as caustic soda with secondary containment units. Basin/Pond/Filter system is routinely inspected to ensure areas are draining to the onsite settling pond. Routine inspections are conducted to ensure containment integrity.			
Marina Corporation Yard	The City implemented the BMPs listed previously for the following activities. Parking/Storage Area Maintenance Vehicle and Equipment Storage Equipment Maintenance & Repair Outdoor Container Storage Vehicle & Equipment Fueling Waste Handling & Disposal Building Grounds Maintenance & Repair In addition, the Marina Yard incorporates BMPs for the following:	9/22/21	 Collect absorbent pads Add sign to absorbent collection bin Faded signage 	9/22/21

	Head and Bilge Pump outs: The City also has a sewage pump out boat with trained personnel to properly pump out and dispose of septic wastes. Boat Disposal: for sunken boats, power is disconnected, absorbents and booms are placed around the boat. National response Center, Cal OES, CUpa, and Coast Guard are notified. Over water spills which can be contained by staff are boomed off. Larger spills are reported to CUPA emergency.		
Environmental Facility	The City implemented the BMPS listed previously for the following activities. Parking/Storage Area Maintenance Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance Outdoor container storage Vehicle and Equipment Fueling Waste Handling and Disposal Outdoor loading/unloading Vehicle and Equipment Cleaning	7/1/21	

Outdoor Equipment	
Maintenance	
Outdoor Storage of raw	
materials	
Building and Grounds	
Maintenance	
In addition, the	
Environmental Center staff	
follow all federal, state, and	
local laws (IPM policy) with	
regards to the use of fertilizers	
and pesticides. Never apply	
pesticides if precipitation is	
predicted or occurring. Only	
use the minimum application	
needed. The Environmental	
Center Facility has large	
open spaces, whose cover	
are maintained regularly to	
prevent erosion.	

C.3 – New Development and Redevelopment

Section 3 - Provision C.3 Reporting New Development and Redevelopment

C.3.b.iv.(2) ▶ Regulated Projects Reporting			
Please see attached table C.3.b.iv.(2)			
C.3.e.iv. ► Alternative or In-Lieu Compliance with Provision C.3.c.			
Is your agency choosing to require 100% LID treatment onsite for all Regulated Projects and not allow alternative compliance under Provision C.3.e.?	Yes	Х	No
Comments (optional):			
C.3.e.v ► Special Projects Reporting			
1. In FY 2021-22, has your agency received, but not yet granted final discretionary approval of, a development permit application for a project that has been identified as a potential Special Project based on criteria listed in MRP Provision C.3.e.ii(2) for any of the three categories of Special Projects (Categories A, B or C)?	Yes	х	No
2. In FY 2021-22, has your agency granted final discretionary approval to a Special Project? If yes, include the project in both the C.3.b.iv.(2) Table, and the C.3.e.v. Table.	Yes	х	No
If you answered "Yes" to either question,	_		
1) Complete Table C.3.e.v.			
2) Attach narrative discussion of 100% LID Feasibility or Infeasibility for each project.			
,			

C.3.h.v.(2) ► Reporting Newly Installed Stormwater Treatment Systems and HM Controls (Optional)

On an annual basis, before the wet season, provide a list of newly installed (installed within the reporting year) stormwater treatment systems and HM controls to the local mosquito and vector control agency and the Water Board. The list shall include the facility locations and a description of the stormwater treatment measures and HM controls installed.

The following projects are still under construction:

The Atchison Apartments 2575 Railroad Avenue Beacon Villas Apartments 555 W 10th Street Tuscany Meadows Subdivision Buchanan Road Diablo Energy Storage

C.3.h.v.(3)(a) –(c) and (f) ► Installed Stormwater Treatment Systems Operation and Maintenance Verification Inspection Program Reporting

Site Inspections Data	Number/Percentage
Total number of Regulated Projects (including offsite projects, and Regional Projects) in your agency's database or tabular format at the end of the previous fiscal year (FY 20-21)	27
Total number of Regulated Projects (including offsite projects, and Regional Projects) in your agency's database or tabular format at the end of the reporting period (FY 21-22)	27
Total number of Regulated Projects (including offsite projects, and Regional Projects) for which O&M verification inspections were conducted during the reporting period (FY 21-22)	9
Percentage of the total number of Regulated Projects (including offsite projects, and Regional Projects) inspected during the reporting period (FY 21-22)	33%³

C.3.h.v.(3)(d)-(e) ► Installed Stormwater Treatment Systems Operation and Maintenance Verification Inspection Program Reporting

Provide a discussion of the inspection findings for the year and any common problems encountered with various types of treatment systems and/or HM controls. This discussion should include a general comparison to the inspection findings from the previous year.

Summary:

Staff continue to work with various property owners to re-establish vegetation. Water conservation practices have contributed to vegetation in some areas to not be as robust as they have been in previous years. There are City maintained basins in need of re-planting as well, which will be separate projects this upcoming fiscal year.

³ Based on the number of Regulated Projects in the database or tabular format at the end of the previous fiscal year, per MRP Provision C.3.h.ii.(6)(b).

FY 2021 - 2022 Annual Report Permittee Name: City of Pittsburg

C.3 – New Development and Redevelopment

Provide a discussion of the effectiveness of the O&M Program and any proposed changes to improve the O&M Program (e.g., changes in prioritization plan or frequency of O&M inspections, other changes to improve effectiveness program).

Summary: There are no changes to the O&M program at this time.

C.3.i. ▶ Required Site Design Measures for Small Projects and Detached Single Family Home Projects

On an annual basis, discuss the implementation of the requirements of Provision C.3.i, including ordinance revisions, permit conditions, development of standard specifications and/or guidance materials, and staff training.

Summary:

Applicants for development approvals for projects creating or replacing more than 2,500 square feet but less than 10,000 square feet of impervious area, and single-family homes creating or replacing more than 2,500 square feet of impervious area, are required to submit a Stormwater Control Plan for a Small Land Development Project that meets the criteria in Appendix C of the Contra Costa Clean Water Program's Stormwater C.3 Guidebook. Appendix C includes minimum specifications for runoff reduction measures.

C.3.j.i.(5)(d) ► Green Infrastructure Outreach

On an annual basis, provide a summary of your agency's outreach and education efforts pertaining to Green Infrastructure planning and implementation.

Summary:

Green Infrastructure is a regularly scheduled topic of the City's monthly interdepartmental Development Review Team meetings. Updates on key milestones regarding the development of the plan and potential projects are regularly discussed. Please refer to the Countywide Program's FY 21-22 Annual Report for a summary of outreach efforts implemented at the Countywide level.

C.3.j.ii.(2) ► Early Implementation of Green Infrastructure Projects

On an annual basis, submit a list of green infrastructure projects, public and private, that are already planned for implementation during the permit term and infrastructure projects planned for implementation during the permit term that have potential for green infrastructure measures. Include the following information:

- A summary of planning or implementation status for each public and private green infrastructure project that is not also a Regulated Project as defined in Provision C.3.b.ii. (see C.3.j.ii.(2) Table B Planned Green Infrastructure Projects).
- A summary of how each public infrastructure project with green infrastructure potential will include green infrastructure measures to the maximum extent practicable during the permit term. For any public infrastructure project where implementation of green infrastructure measures is not practicable, submit a brief description of the project and the reasons green infrastructure measures were impracticable to implement (see C.3.j.ii.(2) Table A Public Projects Reviewed for Green Infrastructure).

Background Information:

Describe how this provision is being implemented by your agency, including the process used by your agency to identify projects with potential for areen infrastructure, if applicable.

Refer to the May 6, 2016 BASMAA document, "Guidance for Identifying Green Infrastructure Potential in Municipal Capital Improvement Projects."

<u>Summary of Planning or Implementation Status of Identified Projects:</u>

In March of this year, Caltrans awarded the City of Pittsburg with funding for two Clean California Grant projects. One the grant projects, the Frontage Road Living Green Trail will construct a Class I pedestrian bicycle trail and include bioretention to treat approximately 2 acres of existing roadway. In addition, the project will beautify an abandoned, excess right of way that experiences chronic dumping. This is a public green stormwater infrastructure project, that is anticipated to be completed in 2024.

C.3.j.iii.(2) and (3) ▶ Participate in Processes to Promote Green Infrastructure

On an annual basis, report on the goals and outcomes during the reporting year of work undertaken to participate in processes to promote green infrastructure.

Please refer to Countywide Program's FY 21-22 Annual Report for a summary of efforts conducted to help regional, State, and federal agencies plan, design, and fund incorporation of green infrastructure measures into local infrastructure projects, including transportation projects.

C.3.j.iv.(2) and (3) ► Tracking and Reporting Progress

On an annual basis, report progress on development and implementation of methods to track and report implementation of green infrastructure measures and provide reasonable assurance that wasteload allocations for TMDLs are being met.

Please refer to the Countywide Program's FY 21-22 Annual Report for a summary of methods being developed to track and report implementation of green infrastructure measures. The City continues to use Cityworks to track maintenance of the City's stormwater facilities.

C.3.b.iv.(2) ► Regulated Projects Reporting Table (part 1) – Projects Approved During the Fiscal Year Reporting Period

North Par Boulevard	Mark Pagone	n/a	1							
	Mark Pagone	n/a								
of Loveridge Road North Park Boulevard)		11, G	Renal Center	Kirker Creek	1.49	1.49	47,847	0	0	47,847
			•	•		•	•			•

Comments:

⁴Include cross streets

⁵If a project is being constructed in phases, indicate the phase number and use a separate row entry for each phase. If not, enter "NA".

⁶Project Type is the type of development (i.e., new and/or redevelopment). Example descriptions of development are: 5-story office building, residential with 160 single-family homes with five 4-story buildings to contain 200 condominiums, 100 unit 2-story shopping mall, mixed use retail and residential development (apartments), industrial warehouse.

State the watershed(s) in which the Regulated Project is located. Downstream watershed(s) may be included, but this is optional.

⁸All impervious surfaces added to any area of the site that was previously existing pervious surface.

⁹All impervious surfaces added to any area of the site that was previously existing impervious surface.

¹⁰For redevelopment projects, state the pre-project impervious surface area.

¹¹For redevelopment projects, state the post-project impervious surface area.

C.3.b.iv.(2) ► Regulated Projects Reporting Table (part 2) – Projects Approved During the Fiscal Year Reporting Period (private projects)

Project Name Project No.	Application Deemed Complete Date ¹²	Application Final Approval Date ¹³	Source Control Measures ¹⁴	Site Design Measures ¹⁵	Treatment Systems Approved ¹⁶	Type of Operation & Maintenance Responsibility Mechanism ¹⁷	Hydraulic Sizing Criteria ¹⁸	Alternative Compliance Measures ^{19/20}	Alternative Certification ²¹	HM Controls ^{22/23}
Private Projects										
North Park Plaza Renal Center	September 1, 2021	December 21, 2021	Mark all inlets with "no Dumping! Flows to Creek" IPM information to owners, properly designed trash enclosure	Site that was previously dirt, and prone to illegal dumping and sediment runoff is now improved.	Bioretention Facility	O&M by private entity	C.3.d.ii.	n/a	n/a	biodetention

¹²For private projects, state project application deemed complete date. If the project did not go through discretionary review, report the building permit issuance date.

¹³ For private projects, state project application final discretionary approval date. If the project did not go through discretionary review, report the building permit issuance date.

¹⁴List source control measures approved for the project. Examples include: properly designed trash storage areas; storm drain stenciling or signage; efficient landscape irrigation systems; etc.

¹⁵ List site design measures approved for the project. Examples include: minimize impervious surfaces; conserve natural areas, including existing trees or other vegetation, and soils; construct sidewalks, walkways, and/or patios with permeable surfaces, etc.

¹⁶List all approved stormwater treatment system(s) to be installed onsite or at a joint stormwater treatment facility (e.g., flow through planter, bioretention facility, infiltration basin, etc.).

¹⁷List the legal mechanism(s) (e.g., O&M agreement with private landowner; O&M agreement with homeowners' association; O&M by public entity, etc...) that have been or will be used to assign responsibility for the maintenance of the post-construction stormwater treatment systems.

¹⁸ See Provision C.3.d.i. "Numeric Sizing Criteria for Stormwater Treatment Systems" for list of hydraulic sizing design criteria. Enter the corresponding provision number of the appropriate criterion (i.e., 1.a., 1.b., 2.a., 2.b., 2.c., or 3).

¹⁹For Alternative Compliance at an offsite location in accordance with Provision C.3.e.i.(1), on a separate page, give a discussion of the alternative compliance site including the information specified in Provision C.3.b.iv.(2)(m)(i) for the offsite project.

²⁰For Alternative Compliance by paying in-lieu fees in accordance with Provision C.3.e.i.(2), on a separate page, provide the information specified in Provision C.3.b.iv.(2)(m)(ii) for the Regional Project. ²¹Note whether a third party was used to certify the project design complies with Provision C.3.d.

²²If HM control is not required, state why not.

²³If HM control is required, state control method used (e.g., method to design and size device(s) or method(s) used to meet the HM Standard, and description of device(s) or method(s) used, such as detention basin(s), biodetention unit(s), regional detention basin, or in-stream control).

C 2 h iv (2) b Populated Projects Penerting Table (part 2)

Projects	` '	During the Fiscal Yea	<u> </u>	•						
Project Name Project No.	Approval Date ²⁴	Date Construction Scheduled to Begin	Source Control Measures ²⁵	Site Design Measures ²⁶	Treatment Systems Approved ²⁷	Operation & Maintenance Responsibility Mechanism ²⁸	Hydraulic Sizing Criteria ²⁹	Alternative Compliance Measures ^{30/31}	Alternative Certification ³²	HM Controls ^{33/34}
Public Pro	jects		•							<u>-</u>
n/a										
										+

Comments:

FY 21-22 AR Form 9/30/22

²⁴For public projects, enter the plans and specifications approval date.

²⁵List source control measures approved for the project. Examples include: properly designed trash storage areas; storm drain stenciling or signage; efficient landscape irrigation systems; etc.

²⁶List site design measures approved for the project. Examples include: minimize impervious surfaces; conserve natural areas, including existing trees or other vegetation, and soils; construct sidewalks, walkways, and/or patios with permeable surfaces, etc.

²⁷List all approved stormwater treatment system(s) to be installed onsite or at a joint stormwater treatment facility (e.g., flow through planter, bioretention facility, infiltration basin, etc.).

²⁸List the legal mechanism(s) (e.g., maintenance plan for O&M by public entity, etc.) that have been or will be used to assign responsibility for the maintenance of the post-construction stormwater treatment systems.

²⁹See Provision C.3.d.i. "Numeric Sizing Criteria for Stormwater Treatment Systems" for list of hydraulic sizing design criteria. Enter the corresponding provision number of the appropriate criterion (i.e., 1.a., 1.b., 2.a., 2.b., 2.c., or 3).

³⁰For Alternative Compliance at an offsite location in accordance with Provision C.3.e.i.(1), on a separate page, give a discussion of the alternative compliance site including the information specified in Provision C.3.b.iv.(2)(m)(i) for the offsite project.

³¹For Alternative Compliance by paying in-lieu fees in accordance with Provision C.3.e.i.(2), on a separate page, provide the information specified in Provision C.3.b.iv.(2)(m)(ii) for the Regional Project.

³²Note whether a third party was used to certify the project design complies with Provision C.3.d.

³³If HM control is not required, state why not.

³⁴If HM control is required, state control method used (e.g., method to design and size device(s) or method(s) used to meet the HM Standard, and description of device(s) or method(s) used, such as detention basin(s), biodetention unit(s), regional detention basin, or in-stream control).

C.3.h.v.(2). ► Table of Newly Installed³⁵ Stormwater Treatment Systems and Hydromodification Management (HM) Controls (Optional)

Fill in table below or attach your own table including the same information.

Name of Facility	Address of Facility	Party Responsible ³⁶ For Maintenance	Type of Treatment/HM Control(s)
Diablo Energy Storage	753 Willow Pass Road	Diablo Energy Storage	Bioretention Basin

FY 21-22 AR Form 3-8 9/30/22

³⁵ "Newly Installed" includes those facilities for which the final installation inspection was performed during this reporting year.

³⁶State the responsible operator for installed stormwater treatment systems and HM controls.

C.3.e.v.Special Projects Reporting Table

Reporting Period - July 1 2021 - June 30, 2022

Project Name & No.	Permittee	Address	Application Submittal Date ³⁷	Status ³⁸	Description ³⁹	Site Total Acreage	Gross Density DU/Acre	Density FAR	Special Project Category ⁴⁰	LID Treatment Reduction Credit Available ⁴¹	List of LID Stormwater Treatment Systems ⁴²	List of Non- LID Stormwater Treatment Systems ⁴³
The City of Pittsburg did not process any project applications for Special Projects this fiscal year.												

³⁷Date that a planning application for the Special Project was submitted.

³⁸ Indicate whether final discretionary approval is still pending or has been granted, and provide the date or version of the project plans upon which reporting is based.

³⁹Type of project (commercial, mixed-use, residential), number of floors, number of units, type of parking, and other relevant information.

⁴⁰ For each applicable Special Project Category, list the specific criteria applied to determine applicability. For each non-applicable Special Project Category, indicate n/a.

⁴¹For each applicable Special Project Category, state the maximum total LID Treatment Reduction Credit available. For Category C Special Projects also list the individual Location, Density, and Minimized Surface Parking Credits available.

⁴²: List all LID stormwater treatment systems proposed. For each type, indicate the percentage of the total amount of runoff identified in Provision C.3.d. for the Special Project's drainage area.

⁴³List all non-LID stormwater treatment systems proposed. For each type of non-LID treatment system, indicate: (1) the percentage of the total amount of runoff identified in Provision C.3.d. for the Special Project's drainage area, and (2) whether the treatment system either meets minimum design criteria published by a government agency or received certification issued by a government agency, and reference the applicable criteria or certification.

FY 2021 - 2022 Annual Report Permittee Name: City of Pittsburg C.3 – New Development and Redevelopment

Special Projects NarrativeNot Applicable

C.3.j.ii.(2) ► Table A - Public Projects Reviewed for Green Infrastructure

Project Name and Location ⁴⁴	Project Description	Status ⁴⁵	GI Included? ⁴⁶	Description of GI Measures Considered and/or Proposed or Why GI is Impracticable to Implement ⁴⁷
ST-2 BART Pedestrian /Bicycle Connectivity Project	This project includes multiuse Class I bikeways and Class IV buffered bikeways (PBTF eligible) within existing public right-of-way, additional parallel parking, trail lighting, and other site improvements that will coordinate with a multimodal transfer facility. This project includes regulated portions, however, the treatment facility constructed for the project will also treat existing portions of roadway that are adjacent to the project (not regulated).	Designs at 90% completion as of 7/19/2021. Project in permitting process with Caltrans. Right of way still to be dedicated to the City.	yes	Bioretention will be constructed
ST-5: Street Median/Landscaping Improvements	This project includes the construction of new street medians/landscaping in various locations throughout the City	Awaiting funding City has also conducted public workshops for development of policies for pedestrian and bike safety.	Landscaping project	Diversion of road runoff into median planter areas

⁴⁴ List each public project that is going through your agency's process for identifying projects with green infrastructure potential.

⁴⁵ Indicate status of project, such as: beginning design, under design (or X% design), projected completion date, completed final design date, etc.

⁴⁶ Enter "Yes" if project will include GI measures, "No" if GI measures are impracticable to implement, or "TBD" if this has not yet been determined.

⁴⁷ Provide a summary of how each public infrastructure project with green infrastructure potential will include green infrastructure measures to the maximum extent practicable during the permit term. If review of the project indicates that implementation of green infrastructure measures is not practicable, provide the reasons why green infrastructure measures are impracticable to implement.

		The coop of the coop is	
		These outreach	
		events will be	
		conducted for	
		one year to help	
		establish	
		Citywide	
		improvements to	
		encourage more	
		pedestrian and	
		bike activity	
		Citywide.	
		Concepts for	
		these	
		improvements	
		include	
		vegetated	
		buffers and bulb	
		outs for more	
		efficient	
		pedestrian and	
		bike crossings.	
ST-15: East Third Street	This project will design and	City is seeking	
Streetscape Improvements	construct streetscape	alternate means	
sireeiscape improvements			
	improvements along East Third Street.	of funding.	
		The	
	Portions of the roadway will	development	
	need to be widened, while	project that was	
	a "road diet" will be	supposed to	
	performed on	build other	
	other sections with a	improvements	
	reduction from four through	and contribute to	
	lanes, parking lanes and	these	
	median to two	improvements	
	through lanes, turning lanes,	has cancelled	
	parking lanes and Class 2	their project.	
	bicycle lanes. Sidewalk will		
	be		
	widened and installed. Bus		
	pull-outs and curb "bulb-		

FY 2021 - 2022 Annual Report Permittee Name: City of Pittsburg

C.3 – New Development and Redevelopment

				,
	outs" will also be included to enhance the area's walkability and promote alternative modes of transportation.			
ST-27: Bailey Road Operational Safety improvements	This project will provide safety improvement, including pavement rehabilitation, restriping and shoulder improvements, to the City owned southern portion of Bailey Road between Concord and Keller Canyon Landfill.	Awaiting funding	TBD	TBD
ST-49: Marina Boulevard Improvements (Marina Master Plan Phase III)	Reconfiguration of Marina Boulevard to reduce the number of travel lanes from 4 to 2 and add diagonal parking and landscaping.	Awaiting funding	YES	TBD
ST-72 Willow Pass Road Class III Bicycle Facility	This project includes widening, signing and striping Willow Pass Road to provide a Class III bicycle facility from West 10th Street to the Union Pacific Railroad crossing. The project will include construction of 8' shoulders east and west bound along the entire length of Willow Pass Road.	Awaiting funding	TBD	TBD

C.3.j.ii.(2) ► Table B - Planned and/or Completed Green Infrastructure Projects

Project Name and Location ⁴⁸	Project Description	Planning or Implementation Status	Green Infrastructure Measures Included
Contract 2022-23 Frontage Road Living Green Trail	Construction of a Class I trail to improve a 2-acre blighted parcel.	Project was awarded a Clean California Grant, which is supposed to complete construction by June 2024.	The project will treat existing roadway runoff, create green spaces, deter illegal dumping, and beautify an unused parcel within a residential neighborhood. Project has the potential to incorporate a road diet to reduce the amount of impervious surface on Frontage Road.

⁴⁸ List each planned (and expected to be funded) public and private green infrastructure project that is not also a Regulated Project as defined in Provision C.3.b.ii. Note that funding for green infrastructure components may be anticipated but is not guaranteed to be available or sufficient.

Section 4 – Provision C.4 Industrial and Commercial Site Controls

Program Highlights and Evaluation Highlight/summarize activities for reporting year:

Summary:

Staff updates the City's Business facilities inventory each year as updates to our business license inventory are made. Each year City staff meet with Delta Diablo Sanitation (DDS) staff to review the business inventory and discuss the priority list of facilities to be inspected. As new priority facilities open for business, they are also scheduled for inspections the first year of operations. In addition, (DDS) staff have conducted joint inspections with City staff engaging problematic operators, and advising them on the best means of implementing corrective issues. Having the support of DDS staff is an invaluable part of the City's stormwater program. The City continued to participate on the CCCWP Municipal Operations Committee this fiscal year. Refer to the C.4. Industrial and Commercial Site Controls section of the CCCWP's FY 21-22 Annual Report for a description of activities conducted at the countywide level.

C.4.b.iii ► Potential Facilities List (i.e., List of All Facilities Requiring Stormwater Inspections)

List below or attach your list of industrial and commercial facilities in your Inspection Plan to inspect that could reasonably be considered to cause or contribute to pollution of stormwater runoff.

Full Name	Full Primary Address	SIC Description
A-S PIPELINES, INC	2025 E LELAND RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Highway and Street Construction
REDGWICK CONSTRUCTION COMPANY	311 HARBOR ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Highway and Street Construction
STEWART HEATING & AIR, INC.	620 GARCIA AVE STE E PITTSBURG CA 94565	Plumbing, Heating, and Air-Con
PERFORMANCE MECHANICAL, INC #2	701 WILLOW PASS RD SUITE 2 PITTSBURG CA 94565	Plumbing, Heating, and Air-Con
ECO PRO	520 GARCIA AVE G PITTSBURG CA 94565	Plumbing, Heating, and Air-Con
A-1 AID PLUMBING	981 GARCIA AVE B PITTSBURG CA 94565	Plumbing, Heating, and Air-Con
AIR SYNERGY INC	600 CUMBERLAND ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Plumbing, Heating, and Air-Con

A1 PHOENIX	981 GARCIA AVE B	Plumbing, Heating, and Air-Con	
	PITTSBURG CA 94565		
BLACK DIAMOND CONCRETE SURFACES INC	2189 HARBOR ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Floor Laying and Other Floor	
J.R. FLOORING & SERVICES INC	2201 HARBOR ST E PITTSBURG CA 94565	Floor Laying and Other Floor	
JUST FLOOR IT	2179 HARBOR ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Floor Laying and Other Floor	
RAMAR INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION	335 CENTRAL AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Meat Packing Plants	
RAMAR INTERNATIONAL CORP	1101 RAILROAD LN PITTSBURG CA 94565	Ice Cream and Frozen Desserts	
U.S.A. ICE CREAM	2173 MARTIN WAY PITTSBURG CA 94565	Ice Cream and Frozen Desserts	
M M ICE CREAM	2250 FREED WAY C PITTSBURG CA 94565	Ice Cream and Frozen Desserts	
THE BONAMI BAKING CO INC	380 E 10TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Bread and Other Bakery Product	
BUSABA CATERING	901 LOVERIDGE RD STE 440 PITTSBURG CA 94565	Food Preparations, NEC	
JORGE BAIDERRAMA	640 GARCIA AVE D PITTSBURG CA 94565	Textile Goods, NEC	
CINTAS CORP 2	1229 CALIFORNIA AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Fabricated Textile Products, N	
GARFIELD BEACH CVS, L.L.C	4301 CENTURY BLVD(INSIDE TARGET) PITTSBURG CA 94565	Pharmaceutical Preparations	
CANYON FORMULATIONS LLC	580 GARCIA AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Pharmaceutical Preparations	
LINDE INC	2000 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Chemicals and Chemical Preparation	
HASA, INC.	1251 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Chemicals and Chemical Preparation	
CORTEVA AGRISCIENCE LLC	901 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Chemicals and Chemical Preparation	
K2 PURE SOLUTIONS NOCAL, L.P.	950 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Chemicals and Chemical Preparation	

SUSTAINABLE WATER SOLUTION LLC	2200 FREED WAY STE C PITTSBURG CA 94565	Chemicals and Chemical Preparation	
PACIFIC COAST GENERAL ENGINEERING INC.	12 INDUSTRY RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Asphalt Paving Mixtures and BI	
USS-UPI, LLC	900 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Steel Works, Blast Furnaces	
CALIFORNIA EXPANDED METAL PRODUCT	1001 PITTSBURG ANTIOCH HWY A PITTSBURG CA 94565	Steel Works, Blast Furnaces	
VIKING INDUSTRIAL CORPORATION	620 CLARK AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Steel Investment Foundries	
BISHOP-WISECARVER CORPORATION	2104 MARTIN WAY PITTSBURG CA 94565	Primary Metal Products, NEC	
ALL SPEC SHEET METAL, INC	547 BLISS AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Sheet Metal Work	
LEVMAR INC.	1666 WILLOW PASS RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Sheet Metal Work	
KORTICK MANUFACTURING LLC	2261 CARION CT PITTSBURG CA 94565	Iron and Steel Forgings	
CHROME DEPOSIT CORP.	900 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Metalworking Machinery, NEC	
GENERON IGS INC	992 ARCY LN BLDG 992 PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Industrial Machinery a	
PUBLIC STORAGE INC	525 CALIFORNIA AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Warehousing and Storage	
SIGNODE INDUSTRIAL GROUP LLC	1 LESLIE DR PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Warehousing and Storage	
STORMASTER	2750 CALIFORNIA AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Warehousing and Storage	
SECURITY PUBLIC STORAGE - PITTSBURG	521 HARBOR CT PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Warehousing and Storage	
FT KNOX PITTSBURG, LLC	3865 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Warehousing and Storage	
PUBLIC STORAGE INC	1275 CALIFORNIA AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Warehousing and Storage	
BRAGG INVESTMENT CO., INC.	1401 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Warehousing and Storage	
EMPIRE BUSINESS PARK	701 WILLOW PASS RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Warehousing and Storage	

PITTSBURG FROZEN LLC	671 WILLOW PASS RD UNIT 7 PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Warehousing and Storage	
PITTSBURG MINI STORAGE	1417 BOBO CT PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Warehousing and Storage	
MASTERANK WAX INC	2221 CARION CT PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Warehousing and Storage	
MARINE EXPRESS INC	2102 KELLEY CT PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Warehousing and Storage	
GOVIND KOHLI	520 GARCIA AVE F PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Warehousing and Storage	
MASTERANK AMERICA INC	2221 CARION CT PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Warehousing and Storage	
CANYON FORMULATIONS LLC	701 WILLOW PASS RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Warehousing and Storage	
ADSCO COMMERCIAL, LLC	1600 BUCHANAN RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Warehousing and Storage	
RAMAR INTERNATIONAL CORP	544 BLISS AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565-0000	General Warehousing and Storage	
RAMAR INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION	539 GARCIA AVE #A PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Warehousing and Storage	
RAMAR INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION	671 WILLOW PASS RD 7 PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Warehousing and Storage	
ACORN SELF STORAGE LLC	5205 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Warehousing and Storage	
D.P. NICOLI INC	1666 WILLOW PASS RD (SUB LEASE) PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Warehousing and Storage	
GLOBAL WORKS LLC	100 BLISS AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Towing and Tugboat Services	
CALIFORNIA TOW SERVICE	3801 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Towing and Tugboat Services	
A & K TOWING	1 INDUSTRY RD WEST COAST TOWING PITTSBURG CA 94565	Towing and Tugboat Services	
BELINDA RUSSO	120 BLISS AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Towing and Tugboat Services	

ASAP TOWING & AUTO SERVICE LLC	660 GARCIA AVE E PITTSBURG CA 94565	Towing and Tugboat Services	
DELTA ENERGY CENTER	1200 ARCY LN PITTSBURG CA 94565	Electric Services	
DIABLO ENERGY STORAGE LLC	783 WILLOW PASS RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Electric Services	
PITTSBURG DISPOSAL SERVICE INC	555 CALIFORNIA AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Refuse Systems	
CONTRA COSTA WASTE INC	1300 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Refuse Systems	
MT DIABLO PAPER STOCK	1300 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Refuse Systems	
PROTECTION ENGINEERING SUPPLY	2201 HARBOR ST STE B & C PITTSBURG CA 94565	Industrial Supplies	
UNIWORLD MACHINERY & SUPPLY INC	690 GARCIA AVE B PITTSBURG CA 94565	Industrial Supplies	
PRECISION EDGE, INC.	130 E 4TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Industrial Supplies	
EBONY BEAUTY SUPPLY	194 ATLANTIC AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Industrial Supplies	
DELTA BEARING & SUPPLY	472 E 10TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Industrial Supplies	
KOCH CARBON LLC	707 E 3RD ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Industrial Supplies	
THE BEAUTY PARADISE	2271 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Industrial Supplies	
EBONY BEAUTY SUPPLY	4504 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Industrial Supplies	
HAIRSTYLE BEAUTY SUPPLY INC	2931 HARBOR ST A PITTSBURG CA 94565	Industrial Supplies	
S & S TOOL & SUPPLY CO	900 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Industrial Supplies	
ISCO INDUSTRIES INC	1501 LOVERIDGE RD STE 10A PITTSBURG CA 94565	Industrial Supplies	
RECYCLING ZONE INC	181 CLARK AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Scrap and Waste Materials	

JC RECYCLE INC	671 WILLOW PASS RD 8 PITTSBURG CA 94565	Scrap and Waste Materials	
NUSTAR LOGISTICS LP	1100 WILLOW PASS RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Petroleum and Petroleum Products	
BP PRODUCTS NORTH AMERICA INC	2102 W LELAND RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Petroleum and Petroleum Products	
ANTIOCH BUILDING MATERIALS	1375 CALIFORNIA AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Lumber and Other Building Mate	
GET IT DONE	2645 PITTSBURG ANTIOCH HWY PITTSBURG CA 94565	Lumber and Other Building Mate	
ORIENTAL FOOD & GIFT MART	155 ATLANTIC AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Grocery Stores	
FOODS CO. #764	300 ATLANTIC AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Grocery Stores	
LA SUPERIOR PITTSBURG	2941 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Grocery Stores	
7-ELEVEN STORE 2232	3300 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Grocery Stores	
LA RAZA MARKET	134 E 10TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Grocery Stores	
DOS CUNADOS MARKET	3105 RAILROAD AVE A1 PITTSBURG CA 94565	Grocery Stores	
WINCO FOODS, LLC	2400 N PARK BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Grocery Stores	
DON PEPE'S MEXICAN MARKET	2181 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Grocery Stores	
AAMIR JAVED AABIA IGBAL AAMIR	4600 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Grocery Stores	
BIG MOP MARKET LLC	2265 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Grocery Stores	
VALLEY MARKET	525 E 12TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Grocery Stores	
EHAB ENTERPRISES INC	44 W 10TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Grocery Stores	
SPICE OF INDIA	3739 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Grocery Stores	
EZ STOP FOOD MARKET	1000 POWER AVE A PITTSBURG CA 94565	Grocery Stores	

AMIGO'S MARKET & LIQUOR	3801 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Grocery Stores	
MI PUEBLO NEWCO LLC	2100 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Grocery Stores	
PARKSIDE MARKET	202 DAVI AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Grocery Stores	
KALRA BROTHERS INC	4102 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Grocery Stores	
LA AURORA MARKET	290 W 10TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Grocery Stores	
ABACUS BUSINESS CAPITAL, INC	2100 NORTH PARK BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Grocery Stores	
VARINDER PREET KAUR JAMMU	3831 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Grocery Stores	
ALI QASEM	315 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Grocery Stores	
SEE'S CANDIES, INC. #73	4175 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Candy, Nut, and Confectionery	
DULCERIA SANCHEZ	152 ATLANTIC AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Candy, Nut, and Confectionery	
AHUALULCO PANADERIA	3712 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Retail Bakeries	
FIVE STAR BAKERY INC	2931 HARBOR ST J PITTSBURG CA 94565	Retail Bakeries	
PAN DULCE BAKERY INC	755 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565-2362	Retail Bakeries	
LITTLE CHARLIE'S GOURMET COOKIES	2951 HARBOR ST E PITTSBURG CA 94565	Retail Bakeries	
AL'S DONUTS	2241 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Retail Bakeries	
BIENESTAR FAMILIAR	552 BAILEY RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Food Stores	
LIFESTYLE SPOT	2225 RAILROAD AVE #100 PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Food Stores	
WINTER CHEVROLET CO., INC.	3750 CENTURY CT PITTSBURG CA 94565	Motor Vehicle Dealers (New and Used)	
UNIVERSAL AUTO SALES	499 E 10TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Motor Vehicle Dealers (New and Used)	

WINTER CHEVROLET COMPANY, INC.	3850 CENTURY CT PITTSBURG CA 94565	Motor Vehicle Dealers (New and Used)	
DAVID & SONS AUTO SERVICE AND CAR SALES	560 W 10TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Motor Vehicle Dealers (New and Used)	
J & B AUTOMOTIVE	2707 PITTSBURG ANTIOCH HWY BLDG# 1 PITTSBURG CA 94565	Motor Vehicle Dealers (New and Used)	
CARDIGAN, INC.	3950 CENTURY CT PITTSBURG CA 94565	Motor Vehicle Dealers (New and Used)	
O'REILLY AUTO ENTERPRISES LLC	399 E LELAND RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Auto and Home Supply Stores	
PITTSBURG MOTOR PARTS, INC.	360 E 10TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Auto and Home Supply Stores	
AUTO ZONE #5310	652 BAILEY RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Auto and Home Supply Stores	
NED'S AUTO BODY SUPPLY	625 CALIFORNIA ST STE A & B PITTSBURG CA 94565	Auto and Home Supply Stores	
AUTO ZONE PARTS, INC.	401 E LELAND RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Auto and Home Supply Stores	
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA DISCOUNT TIRE CO, INC	2220 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Auto and Home Supply Stores	
PITTSBURG TIRES INC	2145 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Auto and Home Supply Stores	
PITTSBURG CHEVRON	3702 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Gasoline Service Stations	
PITTSBURG SHELL GAS STATION	3737 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Gasoline Service Stations	
VINTNERS DISTRIBUTORS, INC.	1235 CALIFORNIA AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Gasoline Service Stations	
TESORO WEST COAST CO LLC.	2971 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Gasoline Service Stations	
GREEN DESERT OIL GROUP INC.	1190 E LELAND RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Gasoline Service Stations	
PITTSBURG 76	2150 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Gasoline Service Stations	
RADC ENTERPRISES INC	2253 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Gasoline Service Stations	
AVIN INVESTMENT INC	1005 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Gasoline Service Stations	

GOLDEN STAR GAS STATION	901 E 14TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Gasoline Service Stations	
TOCCI YACHTS	1 MARINA BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Boat Dealers	
VEE JAY MARINE SERVICES, INC	6 BAY SIDE DR PITTSBURG CA 94565	Boat Dealers	
MAC D PITTSBURG INC	460 ATLANTIC AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
NATIONS GIANT HAMBURGERS #12	3789 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
NEW MECCA CAFE	324 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
MAC D LOVERIDGE INC	2203 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
TAQUERIA LOS REYES	526 BAILEY RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
E & G CHINESE REST INC.	2141 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
WOMAR, INC.	4595 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
VIVA MEXICO GRILL AND CANTINA	1335 BUCHANAN RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
LITTLE J'S	3350 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
HARMAN-DOUG & LINDA, INC.	2155 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565-4940	Eating and Drinking Places	
STARBUCKS COFFEE #6914	1269 CALIFORNIA AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
BIRRERIA EL PUENTE	3748 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
DEPENDABLE FOODS	2243 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
IN-N-OUT BURGER, #168	4550 DELTA GATEWAY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
STARBUCKS COFFEE #9686	2285 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
STARBUCKS COFFEE, #9286	1335 BUCHANAN RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
BAY ARC, LLC	3841 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	

CHILI'S GRILL & BAR #1181	4330 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
CERCA TROVA STEAKHOUSE, LP	4350 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
ANGELO'S PIZZA & WINGS/MINI MARKET	114 ARMY ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
CHIPOTLE MEXICAN GRILL #804	4418 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
HSN ENTERPRISES INC.	176 ATLANTIC AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565-5220	Eating and Drinking Places	
SUBWAY SANDWICHES & SALADS	2121 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
CARNITAS TIJUANA	2193 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
PANDA EXPRESS INC.	2100 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
BASKIN ROBBINS	4493 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565-7114	Eating and Drinking Places	
LAS PANCHITAS	1270 E LELAND RD 100 PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
STEELTOWN COFFEE AND TEA	695 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565-0000	Eating and Drinking Places	
DULCE'S ANTOJITOS	648 BAILEY RD BAY POINT CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
JMPG INC	4001 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
RESTAURANTE MI SALVADOR/PUPUSERIA Y MARISCOS	2909 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
SUBWAY #29318	139 ATLANTIC AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
SONOMA POLLO CORPORATION	4444 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
THE OLIVE GARDEN ITALIAN RESTAURANT #1341	4195 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
EL HUASTECO RESTAURANT	3835 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
LA PINATA	95 BLISS AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	

SUBWAY #5898	532 BAILEY RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places
TAQUERIA ACATLAN	1390 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565-3823	Eating and Drinking Places
LUMPY'S DINER	615 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places
BEST DONUTS & COFFEE	2123 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places
HELEN MINH PHUNG	184 ATLANTIC AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565-5220	Eating and Drinking Places
BUNCH OF BULL INC	2162 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places
RED LOBSTER HOSPITALITY LLC	4095 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places
GOLDEN GATE BELL LLC	2111 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places
E J PHAIR BREWING COMPANY	300 CUMBERLAND ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places
GOLDEN GATE BELL LLC	4470 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places
LA VERANDA RISTORANTE ITALIAN INC	444 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places
VITALIGENT- EASTBAY, LLC	4402 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places
PHO LEE HOA PHAT INC	140 E LELAND RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places
VITALIGENT EAST BAY, LLC	2120 RAILROAD AVE 110 PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places
TOGO'S PITTSBURG	4485 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places
SKYVIEW NOODLE	200 E 3RD ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places
H&S BOBA QUEEN INC	2121 LOVERIDGE RD STE A PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places
TOKYO & BEIJING	2225 RAILROAD AVE #102 PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places
UNCLE WANG CHINESE RESTAURANT INC	3821 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565-6527	Eating and Drinking Places

LA HACIENDA RESTAURANT	303 E 10TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
SUBWAY #64307	2102 W LELAND RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
PITTSBURG FOOD VENTURES INC	378 ATLANTIC AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
TUNA HOUSE	4285 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
RESTAURANTE EL BUEN GUSTO SALVADORENO	136 E LELAND RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
PANERA LLC	4326 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
SAMURAI X SUSHI & TERIYAKI	2171 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
PITTSBURG CHICAGO PIZZA INC	2961 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
WATERFRONT GRILL & CAFE	51 MARINA BLVD A PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
MOD SUPER FAST PIZZA (CALIFORNIA) LL	4310 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
ONE CHEESE STEAK SHOP LLC	4581 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
S KHAN FOOD INC	2290 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
VIET PALACE RESTAURANT	1317 BUCHANAN RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
ELITE DRIVE-INS, LLC	1400 N PARK BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
KAMDHENU LLC	4490 DELTA GATEWAY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
CREASIAN BRISTRO	610 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
WAH SING CHINESE RESTAURANT	2222 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
BUNDU KHAN	4399 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
YUMMY HAWAIIAN BBQ	160 ATLANTIC AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565-5220	Eating and Drinking Places	

DOMINO'S PIZZA	2931 HARBOR ST K PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
NICK'S SANDWICHES SHOP	765 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
JACK IN THE BOX PROPERTIES LLC	1213 CALIFORNIA AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
JACK IN THE BOX PROPERTIES LLC	2135 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
CALIFORNIA BURRITO INC	2175 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
ZESTY OMG, INC	4406 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
HSB EATERIES INC	2130 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
BAYPOINT KKC	2102 W LELAND RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
PITTSBURG FIVE STAR BURGER	2941 HARBOR ST SUITE # D PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
BLUE SAIGON ENTERPRISES, LLC	2243 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
CIRCLE PIZZA, LLC	408 BAILEY RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
CIRCLE PIZZA, LLC	1331 BUCHANAN RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
UBE AREA CORP	2229 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
HECTOR MANUEL GALLARDO PEREDA	3788 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
GLOBAL RESOURCES TRADING LLC	368 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
MARILUS KITCHEN	2181 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
NEW RAMENTEACA	3817 RAILROAD AVE 100-400 PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
WILLIAMS SOUL FOOD AND MORE	2227 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
HARBOR FOOD MART	1996 HARBOR ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	

GOLDEN GATE RESTAURANT GROUP	4701 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
TACO & COMPANY LLC	1005 CENTER DR PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
LUNAHUANA	2931 HARBOR ST N PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
BRUGH CREW LLC	4717 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
QUICKSERVE CAJUN INC	1283 E LELAND RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
RAMEN 101 PITTSBURG INC	4241 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565-7113	Eating and Drinking Places	
DVWB, LLC	51 MARINA BLVD C PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
PITTSBURG TAQUERIA INC.	266 DIANE AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
YOUNG LAS PALMAS	149 ATLANTIC AVE 28 PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
OCZS INC	1291 E LELAND RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
MUDDY LOTUS LLC	2931 HARBOR ST L PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
LA MICHOACANA PLUS ANTIOCH LLC	2965 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
SUPER ANTOJITOS Y TAQUERIA JALISCO LLC	418 ATLANTIC AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
ZESTY OMG INC	2108 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
KOBI ENTERPRISE CORP	785 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
NJ FOOD LLC	3811 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	
FIRE WINGS PITTSBURG INC	196 ATLANTIC AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565-0000	Eating and Drinking Places	
GBC FOOD SERVICES LLC	660 BAILEY RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Eating and Drinking Places	

PINEDA'S	673 CUMBERLAND ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Drinking Places (Alcoholic Bev
RICE WINE LIQUOR, INC.	147 ATLANTIC AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Liquor Stores
VINTAGE LIQUORS	1339 BUCHANAN RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Liquor Stores
C.S.B. ENTERPRISE	2279 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Liquor Stores
SILVER KNIGHT LIQUORS INC	3738 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Liquor Stores
ALL STAR TAMALES	510 GARCIA AVE #D PITTSBURG CA 94565	Mobile food service-retail
STAR ICE CREAM	2173 MARTIN WAY PITTSBURG CA 94565	Mobile food service-retail
HANS TIME ICE CREAM	2183 HARBOR ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Mobile food service-retail
AM ICE CREAM	2250 FREED WAY PITTSBURG CA 94565	Mobile food service-retail
BEST ICE CREAM	2173 MARTIN WAY PITTSBURG CA 94565	Mobile food service-retail
KHANNA ICE CREAM	2173 MARTIN WAY PITTSBURG CA 94565	Mobile food service-retail
REYES ICE CREAM	2173 MARTIN WAY PITTSBURG CA 94565	Mobile food service-retail
EL COMPITA	3801 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Mobile food service-retail
TNT'S BAKERY AND CATERING	300 PRESIDIO LN PITTSBURG CA 94565	Mobile food service-retail
GROOVY GORDITAS LLC	2173 MARTIN WAY PITTSBURG CA 94565	Mobile food service-retail
ICE CREAM PLAYER	2173 MARTIN WAY PITTSBURG CA 94565	Mobile food service-retail
FLYA SPICE CARIBBEAN	2173 MARTIN WAY PITTSBURG CA 94565	Mobile food service-retail
HOME DEPOT	2300 N PARK BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores
LESLIE'S POOLMART, INC. DBA #152	4517 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores
ELVIA LOPEZ	186 ATLANTIC AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores

PETS MART #056	4655 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores
SAFEWAY STORES, INC. #1215	660 BAILEY RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores
SALLY BEAUTY SUPPLY LLC.	4551 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores
PS ORANGE CO, INC	525 CALIFORNIA AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores
HEALTHY WATER	546 BAILEY RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores
WEST MARINE PRODUCTS	4645 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores
MONSAM ENTERPRISES	2685 PITTSBURG ANTIOCH HWY PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores
UPLAND ENTERPRISES	163 E 4TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores
TOUCHDOWN WIRELESS	260 ATLANTIC AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565-5222	Miscellaneous Retail Stores
METRO PCS CALIFORNIA, LLC	4402 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores
GAME STOP INC	2137 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores
T-MOBILE WEST LLC	4524 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores
REDBOX AUTOMATED RETAIL LLC	300 ATLANTIC AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores
REDBOX AUTOMATED RETAIL LLC	4600 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores
PS ORANGE CO, INC	1275 CALIFORNIA AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores
BOTANICA ILE' DOS AGUAS	3810 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565-6528	Miscellaneous Retail Stores
SURGE MARKETING INC	671 WILLOW PASS RD UNIT 1-5 PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores
THE WATER STORE	292 ATLANTIC AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores
EXCLUSIVE WIRELESS	410 ATLANTIC AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores
T-MOBILE WEST LLC	410 ATLANTIC AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores

AKA WIRELESS INC	4255 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores	
CENTER STAGE GAMES	140 E LELAND RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores	
AHMED ALGAMAL & KASSIM SHAIBI	3870 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores	
GLOBAL RESOURCES TRADING	27 MARINA BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores	
AIM MODA MEN'S SUIT OUTLET	690 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores	
PEOPLE'S MARKET & LIQUOR	109 ARMY ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores	
IDEAL HOME DECOR CENTER INC	1251 CALIFORNIA AVE 100 PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores	
ARTESANIAS MEXICANAS HAC	4567 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores	
JJH CA CORPORATION	4322 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores	
DIAMOND MY DESIGNS	3030 RAILROAD AVE C PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores	
HIGH DEFINITION LLC	995 EAST ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores	
BROOKRIDGE FOODS INC	315 E LELAND RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores	
PITTSBURG OUTLET	3105 RAILROAD AVE E PITTSBURG CA 94565-0000	Miscellaneous Retail Stores	
CALIFORNIA GOLDEN BEAR SHIPPING CART LLC	252 ATLANTIC AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores	
MICHELLE ESCOBAR	2223 RAILROAD AVE 200 PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores	
NEW KIRISH INC	2969 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores	
2020 MOBILE CORP	2120 RAILROAD AVE #101 PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores	
BATH & BODY WORKS LLC	4225 CENTURY BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores	

ON SITE EVENTS	625 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Retail Stores	
SB LAUNDRY, INC	301 E 10TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Coin-Operated Laundries	
GOOD CLEAN 'N' FUN, LLC	208 ATLANTIC AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Coin-Operated Laundries	
JDR LLC	2163 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Coin-Operated Laundries	
PITTSBURG 3330	3300 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Coin-Operated Laundries	
DIRTY BIRD PITTSBURG 2907 LLC	2907 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Coin-Operated Laundries	
ROYAL RUG WASHING CO INC	198 HARBOR CT PITTSBURG CA 94565	Carpet and Upholstery Cleaning	
E-Z STOP CONVENIENCE CENTER LAUNDROMAT	1000 POWER AVE C PITTSBURG CA 94565	Laundry and Garment Services,	
ALL PURE POOL SERVICE, LLC	581 W 10TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Personal Service	
PETSPORT USA, INC.	1160 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Personal Service	
NAVASOTA I INC	395 RAILROAD AVE 6 PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Personal Service	
TOUCHDOWN WIRELESS	2145 LOVERIDGE RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Personal Service	
TIFFANY WILLIAMS	3774 RAILROAD AVE E PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Personal Service	
LOVELY PET GROOMING	4005 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Personal Service	
SUPERIOR SOUNDS INC.	625 CALIFORNIA AVE D PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Personal Service	
MATADOR FITNESS	2159 HARBOR ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Personal Service	
EVOLUTION MARTIAL ARTS CENTER LLC	672 BAILEY RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Personal Service	
TRUSTED ANIMAL SERVICES	2104 MARTIN WAY PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Personal Service	

DELTA ART & TATTOO COLLECTIVE	2239 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Personal Service	
FIESTA REGISTRATION SERVICES CA 76	2110 RAILROAD AVE 120 PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Personal Service	
BELLA NAIL SALON	1270 E LELAND RD 104 PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Personal Service	
VANESSA LANDERS	2951 HARBOR ST A PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Personal Service	
METRO PCS CALIFORNIA LLC	101 AVILA RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Personal Service	
KLASSIC BEAUTY BAR	3815 RAILROAD AVE 200 PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Personal Service	
UNITED RECOVERY SERVICES LLC	1251 CALIFORNIA AVE 400 PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Personal Service	
GC SERVICES	420 RAILROAD AVE 201 PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Personal Service	
OBSESSED ESTHETICS	90 E 4TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Personal Service	
ARCE'S ONE STOP SHOP	566 W 10TH ST A PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Personal Service	
DAY SPRING SPA	1353 BUCHANAN RD PITTSBURG CA 94565-6406	Miscellaneous Personal Service	
DAY SPRING SPA	1353 BUCHANAN RD PITTSBURG CA 94565-6406	Miscellaneous Personal Service	
TIN ZHEN TU	564 BAILEY RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Miscellaneous Personal Service	
GERRI D. HAYES	385 CENTRAL AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Building Cleaning and Maintenance	
RUSSO ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES	2153 MARTIN WAY PITTSBURG CA 94565	Building Cleaning and Maintenance	
TRENCH PLATE RENTAL CO. INC.	530 GARCIA AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Heavy Construction Equipment Rental	
CASTLE AUTO BODY AND PAINT	2250 FREEDWAY D PITTSBURG CA 94565	Top, Body, and Upholstery Repair	

R & R AUTO BODY	1436 BOBO CT D PITTSBURG CA 94565	Top, Body, and Upholstery Repair
MIKE ROSE'S AUTO BODY, INC.	3001 NORTH PARK BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Top, Body, and Upholstery Repair
TEMPLERS TOWING AUTO BODY, INC.	941 GARCIA AVE STE G & H PITTSBURG CA 94565	Top, Body, and Upholstery Repair
RUSSO AUTO BODY	369 E 12TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565-0000	Top, Body, and Upholstery Repair
DREAM CREATIONS ART INC	2133 MARTIN WAY PITTSBURG CA 94565	Top, Body, and Upholstery Repair
ADVANCED AUTO BODY & COLLISION REPAIR	620 GARCIA AVE UNIT B PITTSBURG CA 94565	Top, Body, and Upholstery Repair
KING'S AUTO COLLISION INC	2225 FREED WAY STE D PITTSBURG CA 94565	Top, Body, and Upholstery Repair
JC'S AUTO BODY LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY	999 HARBOR ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Top, Body, and Upholstery Repair
PONCHO'S AUTO BODY SHOP	489 W 10TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Top, Body, and Upholstery Repair
ALL-N-1 AUTOBODY, INC	105 BLISS AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Top, Body, and Upholstery Repair
G & C AUTO BODY LLC	107 BLISS AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Top, Body, and Upholstery Repair
DELTA AUTO GLASS	2180 PIEDMONT WAY B PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Glass Replacement
ECLIPSE WINDOW & TINTING	2171 PIEDMONT WAY A PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Glass Replacement
PGW AUTO GLASS LLC	701 WILLOW PASS RD 7 PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Glass Replacement
AMERICAN GRADE WINDOW TINT	520 GARCIA AVE H PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Glass Replacement
TONY'S AUTO REPAIR	1436 BOBO CT C PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Automotive Repair Shop

TECH AUTO INC	598 E 3RD ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Automotive Repair Shop	
COLLISION REPAIR	598 E 3RD ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Automotive Repair Shop	
TEPA AUTO BODY LLC	640 GARCIA AVE A PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Automotive Repair Shop	
BUSH MOTOR WORKS, INC.	650 GARCIA AVE 2 & 3 PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Automotive Repair Shop	
PRAMROS AUTO TRUCK & FORKLIFT	2172 PIEDMONT WAY A PITTSBURG CA 94565-0000	General Automotive Repair Shop	
PANTRANS	560 W 10TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Automotive Repair Shop	
GARCIA'S MUFFLER INC	395 CENTRAL AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Automotive Repair Shop	
FRANK W DEROSA AUTOBODY	1090 HARBOR ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Automotive Repair Shop	
AUTO INN	2200 FREED WAY STE A PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Automotive Repair Shop	
BAC AUTOMOTIVE	2707 PITTSBURG ANTIOCH HWY BLDG #3 PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Automotive Repair Shop	
PREMIUM WINDOW TINT & AUTOWORK	999 HARBOR ST E PITTSBURG CA 94565	General Automotive Repair Shop	
AUTO TRUCK & MARINE SERVICE INC.	601 INDUSTRY RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Repair Shops, NEC	
MAVERICK TIRE SUPPLY INC.	50 BLISS AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Repair Shops, NEC	
EXPRESS SMOG TEST ONLY	2145 RAILROAD AVE UNIT A PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Repair Shops, NEC	
AUTOMOTIVE SPECIALISTS	2180 PIEDMONT WAY # 3 PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Repair Shops, NEC	
ESPINOZA AUTO EXPERTS	540 GARCIA AVE #D PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Repair Shops, NEC	

O'BRIEN AUTO REPAIR	999 HARBOR ST D PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Repair Shops, NEC	
LAS PALMAS AUTO REPAIR	418 E 10TH ST A PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Repair Shops, NEC	
COLLISION REPAIR SHOP & AUTO DETALE	2160 & 2172 PIEDMONT WAY STE B, C, D PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Repair Shops, NEC	
WALID A NAZARI	1702 N PARKSIDE DR PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Repair Shops, NEC	
UNIVERSAL AUTO REPAIR	499 E 10TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Repair Shops, NEC	
PITTSBURG AUTOMOTIVE	2171 PIEDMONT WAY B PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Repair Shops, NEC	
QUALITY SMOG	2180 PIEDMONT WAY C PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Repair Shops, NEC	
CHECO'S AUTO REPAIR	566 W 10TH ST A PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Repair Shops, NEC	
CALIFORNIA SMOG CHECKS INC	140 BLISS AVE STE D PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Repair Shops, NEC	
AMERICA AUTOMOTIVE	564 W 10TH ST B PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Repair Shops, NEC	
NICK'S AUTO CENTER	660 GARCIA AVE A PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Repair Shops, NEC	
LOS PRIMOS AUTOMOTIVE	418 E 10TH ST B PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Repair Shops, NEC	
PULIDO AUTOMOTIVE	1187 RAILROAD LN PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Repair Shops, NEC	
ALEXANDER ENTRPRISES INC	430 E 10TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Repair Shops, NEC	
JOE AUTO SMOG	2201 HARBOR ST STE D PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Repair Shops, NEC	

D'S KUSTOM'S AUTO REPAIR	2250 FREED WAY NC PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Repair Shops, NEC	
AUTO ELITE CUSTOM CLASSICS	1702 N PARKSIDE DR A PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Repair Shops, NEC	
CRASH CHAMPIONS LLC	3001 N PARK BLVD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Repair Shops, NEC	
SUPERIOR EXPRESS WASH INC	3590 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Carwashes	
FERNANDES AUTO WRECKING & TOWING, INC	650 W 10TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Services	
OIL CHANGERS-IV #401	3858 RAILROAD AVE PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Services	
PITTSBURG SMOG	901 E 14TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Services	
ANTIOCH ALLOY INC	941 GARCIA AVE A PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Services	
HANI FAHIMA	40 N PARKSIDE DR PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Services	
EAST BAY SPEED & CUSTOM	1501 LOVERIDGE RD 3D PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Services	
DURANS AUTO GLASS	999 HARBOR ST E PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Services	
TOP NOTCH BRAKE & TOWING SERVICE	1592 WILLOW PASS RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Automotive Services	
BG'S MARINE CENTER, INC.	3 INDUSTRY RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Repair Shops and Related Services	
BOTTOMLINE SERVICES	498 E 10TH ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Repair Shops and Related Services	
DELTA FORKLIFT SERVICE & EQUIPMENT	961 GARCIA AVE C PITTSBURG CA 94565-5080	Repair Shops and Related Services	
RICKY'S CUTTING EDGE	1625 BUCHANAN RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Repair Shops and Related Services	
GEO WIRELESS LLC	333 E LELAND RD PITTSBURG CA 94565	Repair Shops and Related Services	

C.4 – Industrial and Commercial Site Controls

BAY AREA ECONOMY BIKES LLC	680 GARCIA AVE #C PITTSBURG CA 94565	Repair Shops and Related Services
GARIG EQUIPMENT	970 GARCIA AVE A PITTSBURG CA 94565	Repair Shops and Related Services
A & P MOBILE FLEET SERVICES & REPAIR	564 W 10TH ST C PITTSBURG CA 94565	Repair Shops and Related Services
LOS MEDANOS ENERGY CENTER	750 E 3RD ST PITTSBURG CA 94565	Administration of General Econ

C.4.d.iii.(2)(a) & (c) ► Facility Inspections

Fill out the following table or attach a summary of the following information. Indicate your reporting methodology below.

	Х	Permittee reports multiple discrete potential and actual discharges at a site as one enforcement action.
--	---	--

Permittee reports the total number of discrete potential and actual discharges on each site.

	Number
Total number of inspections conducted (C.4.d.iii.(2)(a))	66
Violations, enforcement actions, or discreet number of potential and actual discharges resolved within 10 working days or otherwise deemed resolved in a longer but still timely manner (C.4.d.iii.(2)(c))	2

Comments:

The two enforcement actions were resolved in a timely manner. Both actions involved the improper handling of waste oil. Staff worked with the operators of these establishments for the cleanup and have been monitoring these businesses for compliance.

C.4.d.iii.(2)(b) ▶ Frequency and Type of Enforcement Conducted

Fill out the following table or attach a summary of the following information

	Enforcement Action (as listed in ERP) ⁴⁹	Number of Enforcement Actions Taken
Level 1	Notices of Violation	2
Level 2	n/a	
Level 3	n/a	
Level 4	n/a	
Total		2

C.4.d.iii.(2)(d) ► Frequency of Potential and Actual Non-stormwater Discharges by Business Category

Fill out the following table or attach a summary of the following information.

Business Category ⁵⁰	Number of Actual Discharges	Number of Potential Discharges
AUTO AND HOME SUPPLY STORE	0	0
AUTOMOTIVE EXHAUST REPAIR	0	0
AUTOMOTIVE REPAIR SHOPS NEC	0	0
AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES EXCEPT REPAIRS	0	0
AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES,	0	0
AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES, EXCEPT REPAIR AND CARWASHES	0	0
CANDY, NUT, AND CONFECTIONERY	0	0
CAR WASHES	0	0
CARPET AND UPHOLSTERY CLEANING	0	0
COIN OPERATED LAUNDRY	0	0
CORPORATION YARDS	0	0
DRINKING PLACES	0	0

⁴⁹Agencies to list specific enforcement actions as defined in their ERPs. ⁵⁰List your Program's standard business categories.

EATING AND DRINKING PLACES	2	0
FOOD PREPARATIONS, NEC	0	0
FOOD SERVICE	0	0
GASOLINE SERVICE STATIONS	0	0
GENERAL ATUTOMTIVE REPAIR	0	0
GROCERY STORES	0	1
LAUNDRY AND GARMENT SERVICES	0	0
LINEN SUPPLY	0	0
MANUFACTURING	0	0
METALWORKING, MACHINERY, NEC	0	0
MISCELLANEOUS FOOD STORE	0	0
MISCELLANEOUS PERSONAL SERVICE	0	0
MOBILE CLEANERS	0	0
MOBILE FOOD SERVICE – RETAIL	0	0
MOBILE PET GROOMERS	0	0
MOTOR VEHICLE DEALERS (VEHICLE SERVICE)	0	0
NOI FILER	0	0
PLANT NURSERIES	0	0
REPAIR SHOPS AND RELATED SERVICES	0	0
RETAIL BAKERIES	0	0
SPECIAL SERVICES	0	0
SPEIAL TRADE CONTRACTORS (CORPORATION YARD)	0	0
TOP, BODY, AND UPHOLSTERY REPAIR	0	0
TOWING AND TUGBOAT SERVICES	0	0

C.4.d.iii.(2)(e) ► Non-Filers

List below or attach a list of the facilities required to have coverage under the Industrial General Permit but have not filed for coverage:

The following list of businesses were identified as having SIC codes, which are subject to an Industrial General Permit, through the Business License Screening. All of these businesses have been notified to contact the waterboard to file for an IGP, and the ones highlighted have received a WDID or NEC #.

Business Name	SIC	Description
White Glove	4212	Trucking
Masterank America	4225	General Warehousing
Jinder Motors Inc	4212	Trucking
Haver Trans Inc	4212	Trucking
J & J Trans	4212	Dump Trucks
Sunny Motors Transport	4213	Trucking
PFamily Food	2099	PFamily Food
Number One Concrete	4212	Concrete & Transporting
Kortick Manufacturing LLC	3146	Manufacturing pipeline hardware
Canyon Formulations LLC	2834	Pharmaceutical Preparations
Canyon Formulations LLC	4225	Warehouser and Shipper of Pharmaceutical
Facility For Forest III O	4045	and Cosmetics
Eagle Eye Express, LLC	4215	Delivery Service, Logistics Support
Jasbir Trans Inc.	4212	Construction Trucking Sand and Gravel
Hubbart Trucking Inc	4212	Hauling Material to and from Construction Sites
Sierra Boat & RV Storage	4225	General Warehousing & Storage
Airamanna	2339	Clothing (online webstore)
FortyNiner Trucking	4213	Trucking
Heidi Quinones	4119	Rideshare
Norcal Equipment Rental LLC	3531	Construction Machinery and Equipment Rental
Bay Side Limo	4119	Limo
SEG Trucking	4212	Trucking
A Ford Trucking Co Inc	4212	Trucking/Transportation

Ramar Foods	3999	Manufacturing Industries, not elsewhere classified	
Santa Barbara Transportation Corp	4151	School Buses	
ALLIED CRANE LLC	3565	Packing Machinery	
Ramar international Corporation	4225	General Warehousing and Storage	
Ramar international Corporation	3999	Manufacturing Industries, NEC	
Ramar international Corporation	2011	Meat Packing Plants	
Atlas Pellet Corp	2448	Wood Pallets and Skids	
WM Designs	2499	Wood Products, NEC	
Ramar	4225	General Warehousing	
Thunder Express Printing services	2759	Commercial Printing, not elsewhere classified	
Hammond Enterprises	3599	Manufacturing, NEC	
Thatcher's Gourmet Popcorn	2064	Candy and other Confectionery Products	
H & N Towing and Transporting	4492	Towing	
Headlands Brewing Co	2082	Malt Beverages	
ASAP TOWING & AUTO SERVICE LLC	4492	towing services	
Aspects Entertainment	2731	Books: Publishing, or Publishing and Printing	

C.4.e.iii ▶Staff T	raining Sum	mary				
Training Name	Training Dates	Topics Covered	No. of Industrial/ Commercial Site Inspectors in Attendance	Percent of Industrial/ Commercial Site Inspectors in Attendance	No. of IDDE Inspectors in Attendance	Percent of IDDE Inspectors in Attendance
C4/C5 Stormwater Inspector Training	6/22/22	Stormwater Regulation, MRP3 changes, Investigations for Cross Connections in Storm Water, Addressing Encampments, Enforcement & Coordination	1	50	0	0
CWEA –Annual Pretreatment, Pollution Prevention and Stormwater Conference	6/21/22- 6/23/22	Pretreatment, Pollution Prevention, and Stormwater Pollution Prevention	1	33	1	33

Comments:

Section 5 – Provision C.5 Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination

Program Highlights and Evaluation

Highlight/summarize activities for reporting year:

Provide background information, highlights, trends, etc.

Public Works staff prioritize servicing storm drain mains that experience chronic flooding, and areas where illegal dumping is prevalent. Routine servicing of these drains begins August 1 thru October 31st each year. Staff is able to be more efficient with inspections and prioritizing areas since the City has its own CCTV equipment to target the segments of pipe needing immediate attention. The City also participates in the CCCWP Municipal Operations Committee. Refer to the C.5 Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination section of the CCCWP FY 21-22 Annual Report for a description of activities implemented at the countywide and/or regional level.

C.5.c.iii ► Complaint and Spill Response Phone Number

Summary of any changes made during FY 21-22:

The Contra Costa Clean Water Program launched its new 1-800- No Dumping Hotline and online reporting tool on their website. Now callers are forwarded directly to the jurisdictions they're reporting. In addition, the City also offers the public the ability to report discharges via the City's Government outreach website. No change to the publicized point of contact on our website.

C.5.d.iii.(1), (2), (3) ► Spill and Discharge Complaint Tracking

Spill and Discharge Complaint Tracking (fill out the following table or include an attachment of the following information)		
	Number	
Discharges reported (C.5.d.iii.(1))	12	
Discharges reaching storm drains and/or receiving waters (C.5.d.iii.(2))	8	
Discharges resolved in a timely manner (C.5.d.iii.(3))	8	

Comments:

Illicit discharges and illegal dumping are reported to the Public Works Dispatch Center, through the 1-800 No Dumping Hotline, and through the City's Go Cities Request App. Public Works staff are dispatched to investigate these calls and abate spills as needed. City staff make field assessments of the discharge. If discharge was found to have already impacted the storm drain or a creek, staff will conduct the cleanup

C.5 – Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination

immediately. A warning is typically given to residents or businesses for the first incident, any subsequent incidents are reported to the City's permit coordinator for further action and cost recovery.

All reported discharges that Public Works staff investigates are tracked on work orders with the Cartograph database and by the City's permit coordinator.

Section 6 – Provision C.6 Construction Site Controls

C.6.e.iii.(3)(a), (b), (c),	(d) ►Site/Inspection Totals		
Number of active Hillside Sites (sites disturbing < 1 acre of soil requiring storm water runoff quality inspection) (C.6.e.iii.3.a)	Number of High Priority Sites (sites disturbing < 1 acre of soil requiring storm water runoff quality inspection) (C.6.e.iii. 3.c)	Number of sites disturbing ≥ 1 acre of soil (C.6.e.iii.3.b)	Total number of storm water runoff quality inspections conducted (include only Hillside Sites, High Priority Sites and sites disturbing 1 acre or more) (C.6.e.iii. 3.d)
# O	# 0	# 10	# 63

Comments:

Provide the number of inspections that are conducted at sites not within the above categories as part of your agency's inspection program and a general description of those sites, if available or applicable.

One site received BMP inspections for a parking lot renovation that was not within the above categories.

C.6.e.iii.(3)(e) ► Construction Related Storm Water Enforcement Actions

	Enforcement Action	Number Enforcement Actions Issued
	(as listed in ERP) ⁵¹	
Level 1 ⁵²	Verbal Notice	4
Level 2	Notice of Violation	4
Level 3	Formal Enforcement	0
Level 4	Legal Action	0
Total		8

C.6.e.iii.(3)(f), ►Illicit Discharges

	Number
Number of illicit discharges, actual and those inferred through evidence at hillside sites, high priority sites and sites that disturb 1 acre or more of land (C.6.e.iii. 3.f)	0

C.6.e.iii.(3)(g) ► Corrective Actions

Indicate your reporting methodology below.

	Permittee reports multiple discrete potential and actual discharges at a site as one enforcement action.
--	--

Permittee reports the total number of discrete potential and actual discharges on each site.

	Number
Enforcement actions or discrete potential and actual discharges fully corrected within 10 business days after	0
violations are discovered or otherwise considered corrected in a timely period (C.6.e.iii3.g)	
	•

Comments:

Not applicable.

⁵¹Agencies should list the specific enforcement actions as defined in their ERPs.

⁵²For example, Enforcement Level 1 may be Verbal Warning.

C.6.e.iii.(4) ► Evaluation of Inspection Data

Describe your evaluation of the tracking data and data summaries and provide information on the evaluation results (e.g., data trends, typical BMP performance issues, comparisons to previous years, etc.).

Description:

Inspection results indicate an increase of enforcement action in new development sites this FY. BMPs for erosion control and trackout were typically the most problematic. In most cases the issues are resolved within a week and follow up inspections indicate improvement over time.

C.6.e.iii.(4) ► Evaluation of Inspection Program Effectiveness

Describe what appear to be your program's strengths and weaknesses, and identify needed improvements, including education and outreach.

Description:

City Staff uses a Smartsheet to track rainy season inspections. A notification and pre-con with the site SWPPP administrator typically occurs before the rainy season in order to address issues ahead of time. The City participates in the CCCWP's New Development workgroup and distributes training to city inspectors whenever available. Refer to the C.6 Construction Site Control section of countywide program's FY 21-22 Annual Report (if applicable) for a description of activities implemented at the countywide and/or regional level.

Training Name Training Dates Topics Covered in Attendance C6 Rainy Season Construction Inspection Training 9/21 NPDES, Construction Site Management, BMPs, Inspections, ERP 12

Section 7 – Provision C.7. Public Information and Outreach

C.7.b.i.1 ▶ Outreach Campaign

Summarize outreach campaign. Include details such as messages, creative developed, and outreach media used. The detailed outreach campaign report may be included as an attachment. If outreach campaign is being done by participation in a countywide or regional program, refer to the separate countywide or regional Annual Report.

Summary:

The City participated in the regional outreach efforts (See the Fiscal Year 2021/2022 CCCWP Annual Report for a summary of outreach efforts conducted at the program level. The City was able to conduct its annual Green Footprint Festival event in person this fiscal year. The City also conducted outreach for the proper management of used oil in partnership with local trash hauler, Mt. Diablo resource Recovery to develop informational newsletter and welcome bags that are handed out by MDRR to all new solid waste accounts created in the City. The welcome bags are helpful in guiding new residents to local service provided, such as the HHW facility, curbside oil collection, and more. The City's marina staff promotes recycling oil and filters to avoid sheens on the water and other illegal dumping as part of the marina's Clean Green Marina certification.

Events and education programs detailed below including: Civic Pride Day, Delta Waters, Green Footprint Festival, Kids for the Bay, and EcoHero+.

C.7.c. Stormwater Pollution Prevention Education

No Change

C.7.d ▶ Public Outreach and Citizen Involvement Events

Describe general approach to event selection. Provide a list of outreach materials and giveaways distributed.

Use the following table for reporting and evaluating public outreach events

Use the following table for reporting and evaluating	ið hanir aguadett evettis	
Event Details	Description (messages, audience)	Evaluation of Effectiveness
Provide event name, date, and location. Indicate if event is local, countywide or regional. Indicate if event is public outreach or citizen involvement.	Identify type of event (e.g., school fair, creek clean-up, storm drain stenciling, farmers market etc.), type of audience (school children, gardeners, homeowners etc.) and outreach messages (e.g., Enviroscape presentation, pesticides, stormwater awareness)	Provide general staff feedback on the event (e.g., success at reaching a broad spectrum of the community, well attended, good opportunity to talk to gardeners etc.). Provide other details such as: • Success at reaching a broad spectrum of the community • Number of participants compared to previous years. • Post-event effectiveness assessment/evaluation results • Quantity/volume of materials cleaned up, and comparisons to previous efforts
LOCAL: Civic Pride Day, local citizen involvement event May 7, 2022 Delta De Anza Trail between Harbor and Loveridge Along W 10 th Street	Community trash and litter cleanup event held at various locations throughout Pittsburg. Audience included all residents of Pittsburg	The annual event returned after a 3-year hiatus due to the pandemic. It attracted participants from ages 2 and above. The number of participants (approximately 60) and number of locations cleaned (2) was reduced from years prior (usually over 100 participants cleaning up to 5 locations) due to issues with homeless encampments at several of the typical creek cleanup areas. It is staff's assumption that the global pandemic also affected the participation levels with the school district in comparison to previous years. Regardless, participants collected over 50 bags of garbage at this event.
LOCAL: Living Green Gardens - continued	The City installed Living Green Gardens as a demonstration garden designed to provide	The Livinggreengardens.com website provides residents with great information about IPM and

information to residents, businesses, landscapers, and architects on plants that require less water, no pesticide use, and teach about low flow irrigation. This halfacre garden at City Hall promotes Integrated Pest Management, Water Conservation, and Drought Tolerant Plants with signage throughout describing all of these concepts.

The garden is for residents but also for commercial landscapers to learn about new innovative irrigation techniques, alternative fertilization methods, and drought tolerant plant varieties.

The garden teaches how to naturally enhance the soil with mulch and compost because when plants are healthy, they can naturally resist pests.

Another big concept demonstrated is the importance of low flow irrigation and how drip irrigation has evolved to provide more efficiency, flexibility with installation, and other options to sub surface irrigation that will provide more efficient methods of getting water to the plant roots. A fertigation tank has been installed to use organic soluble fertilizer within the subsurface irrigation system.

Lastly, there is a turf demonstration area, in consultation with UC Davis, with grasses that use 75% less water, disease resistant and less maintenance. They are: 1) UC Verde Buffalo Grass, 2) Kurapia, 3) Delta Blue Grass No Mow and 4) traditional fescue. Each turf area has a separate meter to monitor water use. Having these various turfs on display allows individuals to look and touch

irrigation promoting workshops at the City and in the area.

The City received a Clean California Grant for the construction of a green trail and the retrofit of the City's existing IPM outreach website. The outreach portion of the grant project involves the expansion of the existing "Living Green Gardens" website to become "Living Green Pittsburg". This website will serve as an interactive tool between the City and its residents, and providing them information about information on how to live "greener" lifestyles. It will include information about existing and new trails throughout the City, resources for wastes disposal, IPM, and litter reduction. The litter reduction section will provide opportunities for groups or individuals to sign up/ form adopt a spot groups, and allow for the public to make suggestions for greas needing additional help. The purpose is to get the residents engaged in their own neighborhoods, and garner partnerships.

the various might app Lastly, Livin Cerified.
--

C.7.e. ► Watershed Stewardship Collaborative Efforts

Summarize watershed stewardship collaborative efforts and/or refer to a regional report that provides details. Describe the level of effort and support given (e.g., funding only, active participation etc.). State efforts undertaken and the results of these efforts. If this activity is done regionally refer to a regional report.

Evaluate effectiveness by describing the following:

- Efforts undertaken
- Major accomplishments

Summary:

Delta Waters: The City in partnership with Corteva, the US Fish and Wildlife Service, and Pittsburg High school hosts an educational day on the delta for up to 200 4th grade students annually. This program has been in place for over a decade, and took a brief hiatus while schools were virtual due to the pandemic, returning in spring 2022. The City developed the curriculum, provides student and teacher workbooks and guides, recruits and schedules class dates with the listed partners, supports the program financially, and provides instructions at one of the five education stations. In a 4-hour period, approximately 50 students rotate between five stations focusing on: food chains and food webs, human impact on watersheds and ecosystems, native/non-native species, water quality testing, and macro and micro organisms. Human impact and water quality stations incorporate lessons about activities that contribute to pollution of the watershed and its inhabitants.

C.7.f. ► School-Age Children Outreach

Summarize school-age children outreach programs implemented. A detailed report may be included as an attachment. Use the following table for reporting school-age children outreach efforts.

Program Details	Focus & Short Description	Number of Students/Teachers reached	Evaluation of Effectiveness
Provide the following information: Name Grade or level (elementary/ middle/ high)	Brief description, messages, methods of outreach used	Provide number or participants	Provide agency staff feedback. Report any other evaluation methods used (quiz, teacher feedback etc.). Attach evaluation summary if applicable.
Green Footprint Festival, local citizen involvement event June 2, 2022	This event is the City of Pittsburg's annual Earth Day Celebration intentionally held on the first day of summer break in order to attract as	350 attendees 26 exhibitors	The event was aimed at youth and was all- around very enjoyable and educational with age-appropriate activities and take-aways from each exhibitor.

Small World Park in Pittsburg	many youth as possible. It is an interactive event where sustainabilityminded exhibitors provide key lessons through games and take-aways for the kids and their joining guardians.		
EcoHero Predominantly k-5, one k-8 school participates	40-minute whole-school assemblies with the philosophy that every kid can change the world, EcoHero introduces students to sustainability issues including preventing waste from entering the storm drains, and how they can get involved. Performers teach dances or call & responses to each of their music videos. Between songs, discussions through storytelling & trivia illustrate how students can have an impact on their ecosystem at home and at school.	9 K-5 schools 1 K-8 school	Satisfaction survey conducted right after performances for students and school staff. Receive high marks The reach of this program is thousands of students
Kids for the Bay Approximately 60 students (2 4th grade classes)	KIDS for the BAY Educator Corey Chan began teaching the WAP at Willow Cove Elementary in October, 2021. Our students have been diving into hands-on watershed science activities in the classroom, connecting with their local environment in watershed scavenger hunts outside, and conducting school campus and neighborhood trash cleanup projects to prevent litter from entering the storm drain system.	Approximately 60 students (2 4th grade classes)	Continued participation by teachers and support from principals of PUSD

Section 9 - Provision C.9 Pesticides Toxicity Controls

C.9.a. ►Implement IPM Policy or Ordinance			_					
Is your municipality implementing its IPM Policy/Ordinance and Stan Procedures?	dard Operatin	Ø	Χ	Yes	No			
If no, explain:								
Report implementation of IPM BMPs by showing trends in quantities of that threaten water quality, specifically organophosphates, pyrethroattached as evidence of your implementation.								
Trends in Quantities and Types of Pesticide Active Ingredients Used ⁵³	1							
Darkielde Carle war ward Cornellia Darkielde Aaktoo ka war disark ka a	Amount ⁵⁴							
Pesticide Category and Specific Pesticide Active Ingredient Used	FY 16-17	FY 17-18	FY 18-19	FY 19-20	FY 20-21	FY 21-22		
Organophosphates								
Active Ingredient Chlorpyrifos	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Active Ingredient Diazinon	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Active Ingredient Malathion	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Pyrethroids (see footnote #54 for list of active ingredients)								
Active Ingredient Type X	0.58	0	0	0	0	0		
Active Ingredient Type Y	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Carbamates								
Active Ingredient Carbaryl	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Active Ingredient Aldicarb	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Fipronil	128.56	0	0	0	0	0		
Pesticide Category and Specific Pesticide Active Ingredient Used			Δ	mount				

⁵³Includes all municipal structural and landscape pesticide usage by employees and contractors.

⁵⁴Weight or volume of the active ingredient, using same units for the product each year. Please specify units used. The active ingredients in any pesticide are listed on the label. The list of active ingredients that need to be reported in the pyrethroids class includes: metofluthrin, bifenthrin, cyfluthrin, beta-cyfluthrin, cypermethrin, deltamethrin, esfenvalerate, lambdacyhalothrin, and permethrin.

	FY 16-17	FY 17-18	FY 18-19	FY 19-20	FY 20-21	FY 21-22
Indoxacarb	5.5 x 10-7	0	0	0	0	0
Diuron	0	0	0	0	0	0
Diamides	0	0	0	0	0	0
Active Ingredient Chlorantraniliprole	0	0	0	0	0	0
Active Ingredient Cyantraniliprole	0	0	0	0	0	0

Reasons for increases in use of pesticides that threaten water quality:

N/A

IPM Tactics and Strategies Used:

City Staff reuses and applies chips from cut trees for use in landscape areas. Manual traps are used instead of poison to control rodents at City Hall grounds. City uses native or drought tolerant plants to reduce water usage.

C.9.b ►Train Municipal Employees	
Enter the number of employees that applied or used pesticides (including herbicides) within the scope of their duties this reporting year.	10
Enter the number of these employees who received training on your IPM policy and IPM standard operating procedures within this reporting year.	10
Enter the percentage of municipal employees who apply pesticides who have received training in the IPM policy and IPM standard operating procedures within this reporting year.	100
Type of Training:	
Label training, PAPA training, IPM training.	

C.9.c ▶ Require Contractors to Implement IPM

id your municipality contract with any pesticide service provider in the reporting year, for either andscaping or structural pest control?				١	lo
If yes, did your municipality evaluate the contractor's list of pesticides and amounts of active ingredients used?	Yes		١	lo,	
If your municipality contracted with any pesticide service provider, briefly describe how contractor complia SOPs was monitored	nce wit	n IPM I	Policy/Ord	dinan	ce and
The City's structural IPM Contractor provides a detailed report of substances applied, areas that were inspec-	cted, aı	nd not	es if there	e were	pests
found. In addition, the detailed reports are available on their website for City staff to view.					
C.9.d ►Interface with County Agricultural Commissioners					
Did your municipality communicate with the County Agricultural Commissioner to: (a) get input and assistar urban pest management practices and use of pesticides or (b) inform them of water quality issues related to pesticides,		Х	Yes		No
If yes, summarize the communication. If no, explain.				-	
Inspection from County Ag for permit renewal & monthly inspections.					
Did your municipality report any observed or citizen-reported violations of pesticide regulations (e.g., illegal and applications of pesticides) associated with stormwater management, particularly the California Depart Pesticide Regulation (DPR) surface water protection regulations for outdoor, nonagricultural use of pyrethroi pesticides by any person performing pest control for hire.	ment of		Yes	Х	No
If yes, provide a summary of improper pesticide usage reported to the County Agricultural Commissioner are any violations. A separate report can be attached as your summary.	nd follov	/-up a	ctions tak	cen to	correct

C.9.e.ii (1) ▶ Public Outreach: Point of Purchase

Provide a summary of public outreach at point of purchase, and any measurable awareness and behavior changes resulting from outreach (here or in a separate report); **OR** reference a report of a regional effort for public outreach in which your agency participates.

Summary:

See the C.9 Pesticides Toxicity Control section of the CCCWP FY 21-22 Annual Report for information on point of purchase public outreach conducted countywide and regionally.

C.9.e.ii (2) ▶ Public Outreach: Pest Control Contracting Outreach

Provide a summary of outreach to residents who use or contract for structural pest control and landscape professionals); **AND/OR** reference a report of a regional effort for outreach to residents who hire pest control and landscape professionals in which your agency participates.

Summary:

See the C.9 Pesticides Toxicity Control section of the CCCWP FY 21-22 Annual Report for information on point of purchase public outreach conducted countywide and regionally.

C.9.e.ii.(3) ▶ Public Outreach: Pest Control Operators

Provide a summary of public outreach to pest control operators and landscapers and reduced pesticide use (here or in a separate report); **AND/OR** reference a report of a regional effort for outreach to pest control operators and landscapers in which your agency participates.

Summary:

See the C.9 Pesticides Toxicity Control section of the CCCWP FY 21-22 Annual Report for a summary of our participation in and contributions towards countywide and regional public outreach to pest control operators and landscapers to reduce pesticide use.

C.9.f ► Track and Participate in Relevant Regulatory Processes

Summarize participation efforts, information submitted, and how regulatory actions were affected; **AND/OR** reference a regional report that summarizes regional participation efforts, information submitted, and how regulatory actions were affected.

Summary:

During FY 21-22, we participated in regulatory processes related to pesticides through contributions to the countywide Program and CASQA. For additional information, see the Regional Report prepared by CASQA.

Section 10 - Provision C.10 Trash Load Reduction

C.10.a.i ► Trash Load Reduction Summary

For population-based Permittees, provide the overall trash reduction percentage achieved to-date within the jurisdictional area of your municipality that generates problematic trash levels (i.e., Very High, High, or Moderate trash generation). Base the reduction percentage on the information presented in C.10.b i-iv and C.10.e.i-ii. Provide a discussion of the calculation used to produce the reduction percentage

Trash Load Reductions			
Percent Trash Reduction in All Trash Management Areas (TMAs) due to Trash Full Capture Systems (as reported C.10.b.i)			
Percent Trash Reduction in all TMAs due to Control Measures Other than Trash Full Capture Systems (as reported in C.10.b.ii) ⁵⁵			
Percent Trash Reduction due to Jurisdictional-wide Source Control Actions (as reported in C.10.b.iv)			
SubTotal for Above Actions	81.8		
Trash Offsets (Optional)			
Offset Associated with Additional Creek and Shoreline Cleanups (as reported in C.10.e.i)	10		
Offset Associated with Direct Trash Discharges (as reported in C.10.e.ii)			
Total (Jurisdiction-wide) % Trash Load Reduction through FY 2021-22	91.8		
Discussion of Trash Load Reduction Calculation:			

Discussion of Trash Load Reduction Calculation:

C.10.a.iii ► Mandatory Trash Full Capture Systems

Provide the following:

- 1) Total number and types of full capture systems (publicly and privately-owned) installed during FY 21-22, and prior to FY 21-22, including inlet-based and large flow-through or end-of-pipe systems, and qualifying low impact development (LID) required by permit provision C.3.
- 2) Total land area (acres) treated by full capture systems for population-based Permittees and total number of systems for non-population based Permittees compared to the total required by the permit.

Type of System	# of Systems	Areas Treated (Acres)
----------------	--------------	--------------------------

⁵⁵ See Appendix 10-1 for changes between 2009 and FY 21-22 in trash generation by TMA as a result of Full Capture Systems and Other Measures.

Installed in FY 21-22			
Baskets	20	86	
Installed Prior to FY 21-22			
Connector Pipe Screens	1	8	
Baskets	112	167	
HDS Units	3	12	
GRSDs	3	421	
LID Facilities	29	99	
Total for all Systems Installed To-date	168	792	
Treatment Acreage Required by Permit (Population-based Permittees)		156	
Total # of Systems Required by Permit (No			

C.10.b.i ► Trash Reduction - Full Capture Systems

Provide the following:

- 1) Jurisdiction-wide trash reduction in FY 21-22 attributable to trash full capture systems implemented in each TMA;
- 2) The total number of full capture systems installed to-date in your jurisdiction;
- 3) The percentage of systems in FY 21-22 that exhibited significant plugged/blinded screens or were >50% full when inspected or maintained;
- 4) A narrative summary of any maintenance issues and the corrective actions taken to avoid future full capture system performance issues; and
- 5) A certification that each full capture system is operated and maintained to meet the full capture system requirements in the permit.

TMA	Jurisdiction-wide Reduction (%)	Total # of Full Capture Systems	% of Systems Exhibiting Plugged/Blinded Screens or >50% full in FY 21-22	Summary of Maintenance Issues and Corrective Actions
1	16.4	168	18.6%	
2	5.3			Access to maintain the devices has been an issue. Now, vendor coordinates with City Public Work department to post
3	0.1			"No Parking" for scheduled maintenance days.
4	0.6			
5	0.6			
6	0.4			
7	4			
8	0.1			
9	0.1			
10	3.5			
11	0.0			
12	0.0			
Total	31.1			

Certification Statement: The City of Pittsburg certifies that a full capture system maintenance and operation program is currently being implemented to maintain all applicable systems in manner that meets the full capture system requirements included in the Permit.

C.10.b.ii ► Trash Reduction – Other Trash Management Actions (PART A)

Provide a summary of trash control actions other than full capture systems or jurisdictional source controls that were implemented within each TMA, including the types of actions, levels, and areal extent of implementation, and whether actions are new, including initiation date.

TMA	Summary of Trash Control Actions Other than Full Capture Systems
1	The City continues to update its street sweeping inventory with the inclusion of newly constructed development. In addition, the City increased street sweeping by revising sweeping schedules for more effective coverage and conducted outreach to restaurants regarding proper waste management and BMPs. Portion of runoff within this TMA was also diverted to our gross solids trash capture device. City has a staff person dedicated to picking up litter and illegal dumping focused in this TMS, and City-wide. An updated street sweeping schedule can be found on the City's web site, updated 2009 and 2019. Quantities of debris removed are tracked via City's work order database. On April 16, 2018, the City Council adopted Ordinance 18-1445, "Adding Chapter 8.08 Sustainable Food Packaging; Polystyrene Products Regulation to the Municipal Code". The ordinance encouraged food providers in the City to immediately, voluntarily phase out take-out food packaging, sold or offered that is neither returnable, made of materials which are readily recyclable, nor made of a significant amount of post-consumer materials. The ordinance requires food providers to self-certify and submit a report of compliance within 45 days of the end of the fiscal year. Provisions of the Ordinance are voluntary until April 2, 2019. The City will begin enforcement after such date without further notice. On April 14, 2018 the City Council Adopted Ordinance 18-1446, Amending Chapter 8.07 "Plastic Bag Regulation" of the Municipal Code. The current Ordinance banning the use of single use plastic bags was only applicable to retail establishments, but not public eating establishments. This amendment to the Ordinance extends the plastic bag ban to public eating establishments. The
	ordinance became effective 30 days from the adoption date, the provisions of the Ordinance are voluntary until April 2, 2019. The City will begin enforcement after such date without further notice. On June 18, 2018, the City Council adopted Ordinance 18-1449 Amending Chapter 8.04 "Rubbish Removal and Disposal" of the Municipal Code. The ordinance requires all real property owners to maintain their trash receptacles in a code compliant location, with screening including fence, enclosure, landscaping, or other comparable facility as approved by the City. The containers are to be readily accessible with lids kept closed.
	City staff collected debris from illegal dumping in several right of way areas within this TMA this fiscal year. Increased street sweeping by revising street sweeping schedule (2014) and outreach to restaurants regarding proper waste
2	management. Quantities of debris removed are tracked via the City's work order database. Outreach to restaurants tracked by industrial and commercial business inspection reports. Adoption of Ordinances 18-1445 and 18-1446, see descriptions in TMA 1 above. Adoption of Ordinance 18-1449, see description in TMA 1 above. City staff collected debris from illegal dumping in several areas within this TMA this fiscal year.
3	Outreach to restaurants regarding proper waste management and BMPs, increased street sweeping (2014), development of previously vacant land, increased City involvement in clean up after events, increase storm drain maintenance. Quantities of debris removed are tracked via the City's work order database. Outreach to restaurants tracked by industrial and commercial

	business inspection reports. Adoption of Ordinances 18-1445 and 18-1446, see descriptions in TMA 1 above. Adoption of Ordinance 18-1449, see description in TMA 1 above. City staff collected debris from illegal dumping in several areas within this TMA this fiscal year.
4	Additional streets added to street sweeping inventory, revised street sweeping schedule (2014), increased storm drain maintenance, provided dedicated Park Staff to routinely pick up trash and patrol all City parks. Creek Crews have also increased the frequency for creek bank cleanups along Pittsburg-Antioch Highway, due to the number of homeless camps that have occupied the area. Increased covered load enforcement by Code Enforcement (2013). Quantities of debris removed are tracked via the City's work order database. Citations issued for uncovered loads are tracked by the Police Department. City staff has taken on the responsibility for cleanup of all events held downtown with the onset of regular mobile food venues that occur surrounding the new downtown plaza (2016). Additional containers are provided with each special event, and Public Works collect debris generated. Public works crew uses a mini surface cleaner (Factory Cat) that vacuums the debris from the plaza and sidewalk areas. City staff collected debris from illegal dumping in several areas within this TMA this fiscal year. City's on-call contractor collected debris left by homeless camps.
5	Revised street sweeping schedule (2014). Quantities of debris removed are tracked via the City's work order database. City's on-call contractor assisted with the removal of debris left by homeless encampments.
6	City has required school districts to implement C.3 facilities on newly constructed campus sites (2009 – 2016). In 2013 the City partnered with Junior High School science teachers for their series of anti-littering projects. Adoption of Ordinance 18-1449 see description in TMA 1 above. In an effort to prevent the spread of COVID-19 the City closed all of its public parks. However, despite the closure of these areas, the parks were impacted by debris generated by the homeless population, which the City was unable to remove. City staff did their best to stay on top of the litter problem by providing garbage bags and establishing a routine pick up of their debris. (FY 20/21) City staff collected debris from illegal dumping in several areas within this TMA this fiscal year. City's on-call contractor assisted with the removal of debris from homeless encampments.
7	Street inventory updated to include missing streets. Increased street sweeping schedule (2014) and provided dedicated Park Staff to routinely pick up trash and patrol all City parks (2011). Adoption of Ordinance 18-1449 see description in TMA 1 above. City staff collected debris from illegal dumping in several areas within this TMA this fiscal year.
8	Street sweeping schedule was revised to allow the sweeper access to curbs, which allows for more effective debris removal. Adoption of Ordinance 18-1449, see description in TMA 1 above.
9	Adoption of Ordinance 18-1449, see description in TMA 1 above.
10	Adoption of Ordinance 18-1449, see description in TMA 1 above. City staff collected debris from illegal dumping in several areas within this TMA this fiscal year. Stret Sweeping schedule was updated to include newly constructed streets. City collected illegally dumped debris; City's on-call contractor assisted with removal of debris left by homeless encampments.
11	Not applicable, this TMA is comprised of low trash generating area, are under full trash capture, or non-jurisdictional
12	Not applicable, this TMA is comprised of low trash generating area, are under full trash capture, or non-jurisdictional

C.10.b.ii ► Trash Reduction – Other Trash Management Actions (PART B)

Provide the following:

- 1) A summary of the on-land visual assessments in each TMA (or control measure area), including the street miles or acres available for assessment (i.e., those associated with VH, H, or M trash generation areas not treated by full capture systems), the street miles or acres assessed, the % of available street miles or acres assessed, and the average number of assessments conducted per site within the TMA; and
- 2) Percent jurisdictional-wide trash reduction in FY 21-22 attributable to trash management actions other than full capture systems implemented in each TMA; OR
- 3) Indicate that no on-land visual assessments were performed.

If no on-land visual assessments were performed, check here and state why:

Explanation:

TAAA ID	T - L - CL L AA! 56	Sumn			
or (as applicable) Control Measure Area	Total Street Miles ⁵⁶ or Acres Available for Assessment	Street Miles or Acres Assessed	% of Available Street Miles or Acres Assessed	Avg. # of Assessments Conducted at Each Site	Jurisdictional-wide Reduction (%)
1	4.68	1.14	24.28	4	21.0
2	0.40	0.19	46.96	4	0.6
3	1.38	0.38	27.43	4	0.0
4	8.28	0.99	12.00	4	10.9
5	13.82	1.47	10.62	4	7.7
6	3.53	0.28	8.06	4	0.0
7	20.02	2.32	11.59	4	8.9
8	0.26	0.28	109.69	4	0.3
9	0.50	0.28	56.79	4	0.8

 $^{^{56}}$ Linear feet are defined as the street length and do not include street median curbs.

FY 21-22 AR Form 10-6 9/30/22

C.10 – Trash Load Reduction

10	0.11	0.05	41.53	4	0.3
11	0.00	NA	NA	NA	0.0
12	0.00	NA	NA	NA	0.0
	Total	7.4	13.9	40	50.7

C.10.b.iv ► Trash Reduction - Source Controls

Provide a description of each jurisdiction-wide trash source control action implemented to-date. For each control action, identify the trash reduction evaluation method(s) used to demonstrate on-going reductions, summarize the results of the evaluation(s), and estimate the associated reduction of trash within your jurisdictional area. Note: There is a maximum of 10% total credit for source controls.

Source Control Action	Summary Description & Dominant Trash Sources and Types Targeted	Evaluation/Enforcement Method(s)	Summary of Evaluation/Enforcement Results To-date	% Reduction
Plastic Bag Ordinance	The ordinance bans commercial businesses from offering single use plastic bags.	Staff conducts unannounced visual verification of 80% of the businesses for which the ordinance is applicable.	Every year since adoption more businesses are becoming compliant.	n/a
Ordinance 18- 1445 Adding Chapter 8.08 "sustainable Food Packaging; Polystyrene Products Regulation" to the municipal Code	The purpose of the ordinance is to eliminate and regulate the use of polystyrene products in order to protect the health of Pittsburg's citizens and promote environmentally sustainable practices in the City.	City staff will conduct visual inspections of these facilities in the upcoming FY.	Because of the grace period which allowed compliance with the Ordinance to be voluntary until April 2, 2019, verification for compliance continues thru FY 21/22.	n/a
Ordinance 18- 1449 Amending Chapter 8.04 "Rubbish Removal and Disposal" of the Municipal Code	The ordinance formally outlines the approved locations where both residential and non-residential owners of real property may keep their trash containers. The ordinance also outlines specific screening required for these containers. The ordinance addresses litter discharged to the public right of way from improper placement and maintenance of garbage receptacles.	City Staff have taken the lead to conduct enforcement of this ordinance.	Code Enforcement is authorized to issue citations in the amounts authorized under our Municipal Code.	

C.10.c ► Trash Hot Spot Cleanups

Provide the FY 21-22 cleanup date and volume of trash removed during each MRP-required Trash Hot Spot cleanup during each fiscal year listed. Indicate whether the site was a new site in FY 21-22.

Track Hot Snot	New Site in	FY 21-22	Volume of Trash Removed (cubic yards)					
Trash Hot Spot	FY 21-22 (Y/N)	Cleanup Date(s)	FY 2016-17	FY 2017-18	FY 2018-19	FY 2019-20	FY 2020-21	FY 2021-22
Pit-01	N	6/29/22	0.52	3	1.2	5	2.47	1.93
Pit-02	Ν	11/2/21	1.32	3	2.4	30	28	1.93
Pit-03	Ν	8/2/21	36	36	50	1.18	23.54	2.75
Pit-04	Ν	8/27/21	3	1.8	1.8	0.2	20.57	6.05
Pit-05	Ν	7/29/21	1.2	1.7	1.2	Not recorded	1.23	1.65

C.10.d ▶Long-Term Trash Load Reduction Plan

Provide descriptions of significant revisions made to your Long-term Trash Load Reduction Plan submitted to the Water Board in February 2014. Describe significant changes made to primary or secondary trash management areas (TMA), baseline trash generation maps, control measures, or time schedules identified in your plan. Indicate whether your baseline trash generation map was revised and, if so, what information was collected to support the revision. If your baseline trash generation map was revised, attach it to your Annual Report.

Description of Significant Revision	Associated TMA
School District Parcels have been re-classified as non-jurisdictional land use, and have been removed from the baseline generation rate. This change to non-jurisdictional parcels occurred county-wide in FY 17/18. However, since the City has worked with the school district to implement C.3 facilities on newly constructed campuses, the City is claiming trash load reduction credit for those facilities	6
Privately maintained subdivisions maintained by homeowner's association were assessed; City staff was given access to enter and inspect the condition of the site. These areas were previously assumed to be medium trash generating areas, similar to adjacent properties. This revision was a correction to the baseline generation rate. FY 15/16	4,5,7,8
The baseline trash generation map was revised to reflect the correct trash generation rates, and that have continuous dedicated maintenance programs such as HOAs. City staff were able to gain access to these gated communities for visual verification of their trash generation rates. FY 15/16	6
Full trash Capture devices were installed in Public Right of Way and within the largest private commercial property in the City. FY 17/18	1,2
Adoption of several Ordinances targeted to source control of litter: Ordinance 18-1444 Adding Chapter 8.08 Sustainable Food Packaging; Polystyrene Products Regulation" to the Municipal Code (for food providers) Ordinance 18-1445 Adding Chapter 8.08 "sustainable Food Packaging; Polystyrene products Regulation" to the Municipal Code Ordinance 18-1446 Amending Chapter 8.07 "Plastic Bag Regulation" of the Municipal Code (expands prohibition to public eating establishments) Ordinance 18-1449 Amending Chapter 8.04 "Rubbish Removal and Disposal" of the Municipal Code (regulates the placement and maintenance of all refuse containers for both residential and non-residential real property) FY 17/18	1 thru 10

- Please see the following link to the City's current Baseline Trash Generation Map:
- TrashFullCaptureReport Pittsburg Baseline Trash Generation Map 21 22.pdf

C.10.e. ► Trash Reduction Offsets (Optional)

Provide a summary description of each offset program implemented, the volume of trash removed, and the offset claimed in FY 21-22. Also, for additional creek and shoreline cleanups, describe the number and frequency of cleanups conducted, and the locations and cleanup dates. For direct discharge control programs approved by the Water Board Executive Officer, also describe the results of the assessments conducted in receiving waters to demonstrate the effectiveness of the control program. Include an Appendix that provides the calculations and data used to determine the trash reduction offset.

Offset Program	Summary Description of Actions and Assessment Results	Volume of Trash (CY) Removed/Controlled in FY 21-22	Offset (% Jurisdiction-wide Reduction)
Additional Creek and Shoreline Cleanups (Max 10% Offset)	This fiscal year, City Public Works Crews removed an additional 20,145.2 gallons of trash from the identified Hot Spot Areas, additional tributary areas of Kirker Creek, and Willow Creek. These cleanups were conducted from 7/30/21 thru 6/29/22	213.70	10
Direct Trash Discharge Controls (Max 15% Offset)			

Summary of Additional Creek Clean-Up						
WO#	LOCATION	DATE	VOLUME (gallons)			
6051	Pit-05	7/30/2021	990			
6139	Pit-05	8/2/2021	550			
6252	Pit-05 and Kirker Creek	8/5/2021	1100			
6289	Pit-01 and Kirker Creek	8/6/2021	2475			
6442	Kirker Creek	8/16/2021	1210			
6479	Pit-02 to Kirker Creek	8/17/2021	770			

6730	Pit-04	8/27/2021	1210
6885	Kirker Creek channel north	9/2/2021	385
7004	Pit-04 and Kirker Creek north	9/9/2021	880
7036	Pit-04 and Kirker Creek north	9/10/2021	770
7690	Pit-05	10/4/2021	935
7882	Kirker Creek channel north	10/12/2021	179.2
8060	Kirker Creek channel north	10/18/2021	825
8512	Trib to Willow Creek	11/3/2021	330
8884	Pit-04 and Kirker Creek south	11/18/2021	550
9260	Pit-04 and Kirker reek South	12/3/2021	495
9638	Kirker Creek north	12/17/2021	110
9708	Kirker Creek north	12/21/2021	660
10256	Pit-04	1/26/2022	165
10749	Pit-04 and Kirker Creek north	2/17/2022	440
11389	Pit-04	3/15/2022	56

1	i	i i	
	Pit-04 & Pit-		
11750	05	3/30/2022	385
11943	Pit-03	4/8/2022	1760
	Kirker Creek		
12203	North	4/20/2022	440
	Kirker Creek		
12229	north	4/21/2022	110
	Kirker Creek		
12648	South	5/6/2022	495
	Kirker Creek		
13199	north	5/24/2022	275
	Kirker Creek		
13559	north	6/10/2022	495
	Kierker		
	Creek north		
13694	and south	6/17/2022	715
	Pit-01 and		
13984	Kirker Creek	6/29/2022	385
		total	20,145.20

Appendix 10-1. Baseline trash generation and areas addressed by full capture systems and other control measures in Fiscal Year 21-22.

TMA	2009 Baseline Trash Generation (Acres)				Trash Generation (Acres) in FY 21-22 After Accounting for Full Capture Systems				Jurisdiction- wide Reduction via Full Capture	Trash Generation (Acres) in FY 21-22 After Accounting for Full Capture Systems <u>and</u> Other Control Measures					Jurisdiction- wide Reduction via Other Control	Jurisdiction-wide Reduction via Full Capture <u>AND</u> Other Control		
	L	M	н	VH	Total	L	M	н	VH	Total	Systems (%)	L	м	н	VH	Total	Measures (%)	Measures (%)
1	10	103	65	136	314	117	89	19	89	314	16.4	208	65	28	13	314	21.0	37.4
2	0	27	68	0	95	64	25	6	0	95	5.3	84	8	3	0	95	0.6	6.0
3	140	29	0	0	169	143	26	0	0	169	0.1	152	11	5	1	169	0.0	0.1
4	116	680	0	0	797	145	651	0	0	797	0.6	649	147	0	0	797	10.9	11.6
5	88	524	0	0	611	114	497	0	0	611	0.6	531	60	20	0	611	7.7	8.2
6	11	116	0	0	127	28	99	0	0	127	0.4	36	41	41	8	127	0.0	0.4
7	240	665	0	1	907	418	489	0	0	907	4.0	841	64	2	0	907	8.9	13.0
8	30	26	0	0	57	33	23	0	0	57	0.1	51	5	1	0	57	0.3	0.4
9	4	51	0	0	55	10	45	0	0	55	0.1	49	6	0	0	55	0.8	1.0
10	5587	166	1	1	5754	5749	4	1	1	5754	3.5	5754	0	0	0	5754	0.3	3.8
11	190	0	3	0	193	190	0	3	0	193	0.0	190	0	3	0	193	0.0	0.0
12	155	0	0	5	160	155	0	0	5	160	0.0	155	0	0	5	160	0.0	0.0
Totals	6571	2387	136	143	9238	7167	1947	29	95	9238	31.1	8700	407	103	27	9238	50.7	81.8

Note: "NA" indicates that the TMA has no moderate, high, or very high trash generating areas (i.e., all low trash generation and/or non-jurisdictional) and therefore no additional trash control measures are needed.

FY 21-22 AR Form 10-14 9/30/22

Section 11 - Provision C.11 Mercury Controls

C.11.a ► Implement Control Measures to Achieve Mercury Load Reductions

C.11.b ► Assess Mercury Load Reductions from Stormwater

C.11.c ▶ Plan and Implement Green Infrastructure to Reduce Mercury Loads

See the CCCWP FY 2021-22 Annual Report for updated information on:

- Documentation of mercury control measures implemented in our agency's jurisdictional area for which load reductions will be reported and the associated management areas;
- A description of how the BASMAA Interim Accounting Methodology⁵⁷ was used to calculate the mercury load reduced by each control measure implemented in our agency's jurisdictional area (including green infrastructure) and the calculation results (i.e., the estimated mercury load reduced by each control measure);
- Supporting data and information necessary to substantiate the load reduction estimates; and
- For Executive Officer approval, any refinements, if necessary, to the measurement and estimation methodologies to assess mercury load reductions in the subsequent permit.

C.11.e ► Implement a Risk Reduction Program

A summary of CCCWP and regional accomplishments for this sub-provision, including a brief description of actions taken, an estimate of the number of people reached, and why these people are deemed likely to consume Bay fish are included in the CCCWP FY 2021-22 Annual Report.

In addition, the City has informational signage at the City's Marina regarding the risks of fish consumption and mercury.

FY 21-22 AR Form 11-1 9/30/22

⁵⁷BASMAA 2017. Interim Accounting Methodology for TMDL Loads Reduced, Version 1.1. Prepared for BASMAA by Geosyntec Consultants and EOA, Inc., March 23, 2017.

Section 12 - Provision C.12 PCBs Controls

C.12.a ▶ Implement Control Measures to Achieve PCBs Load Reductions

C.12.b ► Assess PCBs Load Reductions from Stormwater

C.12.c. ▶ Plan and Implement Green Infrastructure to Reduce PCBs Loads

See the CCCWP FY 2021-22 Annual Report for:

- Documentation of PCBs control measures implemented in our agency's jurisdictional area for which load reductions will be reported and the associated management areas;
- A description of how the BASMAA Interim Accounting Methodology⁵⁸ was used to calculate the PCBs load reduced by each control measure implemented in our agency's jurisdictional area (including green infrastructure) and the calculation results (i.e., the estimated PCBs load reduced by each control measure);
- Supporting data and information necessary to substantiate the load reduction estimates; and
- Executive Officer approval, any refinements, if necessary, to the measurement and estimation methodologies to assess PCBs load reductions in the subsequent permit.

C.12.f. ► Manage PCB-Containing Materials During Building Demolition

See the CCCWP FY 2021-22 Annual Report for:

- Documentation of the number of applicable structures in each Permittee's jurisdiction for which a demolition permit was applied for during the reporting year; and
- A running list of the applicable structures in each Permittee's jurisdiction for which a demolition permit was applied for (since the date the PCBs control program was implemented) that had material(s) with PCBs at 50 ppm or greater, with the address, demolition date, and brief description of PCBs control method(s) used.

FY 21-22 AR Form 12-1 9/30/22

⁵⁸BASMAA 2017. Interim Accounting Methodology for TMDL Loads Reduced, Version 1.1. Prepared for BASMAA by Geosyntec Consultants and EOA, Inc., September 19, 2017.

C.12.h ►Implement a Risk Reduction Program

A summary of CCCWP and regional accomplishments for this sub-provision, including a brief description of actions taken, an estimate of the number of people reached, and why these people are deemed likely to consume Bay fish are included in the CCCWP FY 2021-22 Annual Report.

Section 13 - Provision C.13 Copper Controls

C.13.a.iii.(3) ► Manage Waste Generated from Cleaning and Treating of Copper Architectural Features

Provide summaries of permitting and enforcement activities to manage waste generated from cleaning and treating of copper architectural features, including copper roofs, during construction and post-construction.

Summary:

There were no required enforcement activities relating to the disposal of waste generated from cleaning and treating of copper architectural features, including copper roofs, during construction and post-construction.

C.13.b.iii.(3) ► Manage Discharges from Pools, Spas, and Fountains that Contain Copper-Based Chemicals

Provide summaries of any enforcement activities related to copper-containing discharges from pools, spas, and fountains.

Summary:

Grading permits are issued by the Engineering Division for all pool demolition. Inspectors conduct pre-job inspections with the property owner/contractor and address proper draining of pools, handout is given as part of the permit conditions.

C.13.c.iii ► Industrial Sources Copper Reduction Results

Based upon inspection activities conducted under Provision C.4, highlight copper reduction results achieved among the facilities identified as potential users or sources of copper, facilities inspected, and BMPs addressed.

Summary:

None of the facilities inspected in FY 21/22 were identified as potential users or sources of copper.

Section 15 -Provision C.15 Exempted and Conditionally Exempted Discharges

C.15.b.vi.(2) ► Irrigation Water, Landscape Irrigation, and Lawn or Garden Watering

Provide implementation summaries of the required BMPs to promote measures that minimize runoff and pollutant loading from excess irrigation. Generally the categories are:

- Promote conservation programs
- Promote outreach for less toxic pest control and landscape management
- Promote use of drought tolerant and native vegetation
- Promote outreach messages to encourage appropriate watering/irrigation practices
- Implement Illicit Discharge Enforcement Response Plan for ongoing, large volume landscape irrigation runoff.

Summary:

The City promotes and implements the following programs and measures:

- The Stormwater C.3 Guidebook for the implementation of C.3 designs to assist with 1) minimizing irrigation and runoff; 2) promoting infiltration of runoff where appropriate; and, 3) minimizing use of fertilizers and pesticides using pest-resistant plants that are suited to site conditions (e.g., soil and climate).
- Green Business Program, which promotes to businesses, a variety of measures such as using drought tolerant plantings, mulching, carefully monitoring irrigation schedules and needs, and implementing Integrated Pest Management.
- Our Water Our World (OWOW) Program, which promotes to consumers at the point of purchase less toxic alternatives to combating lawn and garden pests.
- Bay Friendly Landscaping and Gardening Training and Certification Program, which promotes to landscapers a variety of measures designed to reduce waste and prevent stormwater pollution.
- City staff require developers to provide water efficient landscaping with supporting calculations to demonstrate water efficiency.
- The City amended its Municipal Code Chapter 18.84 Article VII of the Pittsburg Municipal Code, "Landscaping, Irrigation, and hydroseeding" in order to incorporate Water-Efficient landscaping provisions mandated by the State of California.

Additional information regarding efficient irrigation is found on the City's website: www.LivingGreenGardens.com, which is a companion to the IMP/Bay Friendly Demonstration Garden that the City constructed to showcase gardening techniques and landscaping alternatives for drought tolerant, pesticide free landscapes.